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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
& Mew Hempstead Road
Mew City, New York 10956
1914y 638-5131
Fax., (914} 638-5644

SOTT VANDERHOEF GEORGE W RENC. CPA
County Executive June 20 1697 Commissioner

LEONARDO 5 FORTE. CPA
Dreputy Cormissionsr

To the Honorable County Executive
and the County Legislature of the
County of Rockiand, New York:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the County of Rockland, New York, for the year

ended December 31, 1996 1 submitted in accordance with Section 17 02 of the County Charter.

This report has been prepared by the County's Department of Finance in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) set forth in the pronouncements of the Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness
of the presentation, nciuding all disclosures, rests with the County. We believe the information as
presented, 18 accurate in all maternal respects, that it 1s presented in a manner designed fo set forth fairly
the financial position and results of operations of the County as measured by the financial activity of its
varnous funds, account groups and component units and that ail disclosures necessary to enable the reader

to gain the maximum understanding of the County’s financial activity have been included.

This report has also been prepared and organized to meet the requirements of the Government
Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievernent for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program. In

accordance with program requirements, the accompanying report is divided into three major sections:



e imtroductory Section - This section includes a brief explanation of the govemment's

organization, economic condition and outlock, future directions and a variety of financial
information.

. Financial Section - This section includes the independent auditors’ report, general purpose

financial statements, notes fo the financial statements and combining and individual fund

financial statements and schedules,

* Stafistical Section - Although this section contains substantial financial information, these
tables differ from financial statements in that they present some non-accounting data and
present multi-year figures which are designed to reflect social and economic data, financial

trends and the fiscal capacity of the County.

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND TS SERVICES

This report includes all of the funds and account groups of the County. It includes ail County
organizations and activities for which the County is financially accourtable. The County has considered all
potential component units based on criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Staternent No. 14, including legal standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability. Based on these
criteria, the Rockland County Community College, industrial Development Agency, the Soil and Water
Conservation District and Solid Waste Management Authority are considered component units and are

included in the County’s reporting entity as discrete presentations.

The County provides the following services to its residents: education, public safety, heaith,
transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and recreation. home and community

services and general and administration support.



GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATION

Subject to the State Constitution, the County operates pursuant to ds Charter, County Law, General
Municipal Law and other laws govermning the County generally to the extent that such laws are applicable fo

a County operating under the charfer form of government.

The County of Rockland has adopted Local Law No. 14 of 1884 {the "Local Law™) providing for a
charter form of government in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Home Rule Law of the Slate
of New York. Effective January 1. 1986, the County began operating as a charter form of government as

provided in the Local Law.
ECONOMIC CONDITION ARD OUTLO0OK

The County of Rockiand enioyed a healthy increase in its fund balance for 1986 primarity due to
cost cutting initiatives implemented by the County Executive and the improvement in the collection of real
property taxes. For 1886, General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by approximately $10 million for

the General Fund and the unreserved and undesignated fund balance increased to $16.1 milion.

The County Executive's cost cutling initiatives included the conseiééatéen of a2 number of
departments, agencies, offices and divisions resulting in savings of approximately 31.2 million annually. All
Commissicners and Depariment Heads were challenged to prepare and achieve measurable goals of cost
cutting. in particular, the Department of Hospitals has cut its reliance on County taxpayers dramatically
The County, in 1985, was burdened with subsidizing the Home and Infirmary with more than $8.2 million of
iocal taxpayer dollars. During 1996, this was reduced to $6.7 million.  Last year, the County Execulive
successfully challenged our Commissioners and Department Heads {o spend 2% less than ther approved
budgets. For 1996, the estimated expenditures were estimated at $272 million and actual expendiures

amounted to only $250 mitlion, resulting in a favorable vanance of $22 million.
v



The mproved real property collection efforts resulted from a change in the New York State Real
Property Tax Law, which basically reduced the enforcement process from 4 vears to 2 years. This change,
along with the diligent efforts of the Commissioner of Finance, resulted in a reduction of over $5 million in
our tax sale certificates and tax instaliments, componenis of taxes receivabie, which directly enhanced our

undesignated fund balance.

For three years in a row, the County has reduced the property tax levy. This was accomplished by
the wise planming of our Commissioners and Department Heads and the diligent work of our employees.
We are a smaller workforce delivering more services and befter services to our residents, despite
decreased Slate and Federal aild. We have been able o reduce the County property tax burden by more
than 4% at a time when inflation is running at about 3% per year. The County has reduced the size of
government through consolidation, early refirement incentives and cut costs through continuous

mprovements in qushty innovations.,
FUTURE DIRECTIONS

Wiath guality and technology, we are able to do more with less. We continue to move forward with
the mplementation of two major components of our technology upgrade. Lan-1 Corporation. our
consultants for the study and design of our network infrastructure, will provide us with final drawings
shortly.  YWhen implemented, the system will allow our employees to communicate via e-mail and reduce
duplication of effort through the sharing of data, filles and needed information. The County has also
contracted with American Management System (AMS) for the sofiware and imp%ementaiéén support
needed to upgrade our financial and human resource systems. We will move into the 21st Century with

the needed technology to serve our residents well

vi



The County Executive has taken many steps toward improving the efficiency of the County. More
needs 0 be done to help our taxpayers. School taxes, approved by our locat school boards, account for
approximately 687% of the fax bills. Finding additional funds af the State level and ways to distribute them
equitably to reduce the burden of escalating school taxes is essential to the future of this County and all
counties of New York, The Coundy Executive and County Legislators are working vigorously towards tax

redief and will continue to explore all available options.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

These financial stalements accompanying schedules and tables have been prepared on a fund
basis using accounting policies that are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to governmental units and higher education institutions as prescribed by the American Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and GASE.

The modified accrual basis is followed n the governmental fund types, expendable trust and
agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available Expenditures are recorded when the services and/or goods are recewved and the related

lizbility is incurred, except as described i the notes (o the financial statements.

The Proprietary Funds follow the accrual basis of accounting Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time hiabilities are

incurred . Fixed assets and long-term liabilities related to these activities are recorded within the funds.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the appropriation, is employed in the
governmental funds. In the govermmental funds, encumbrances are reported as a reservation of fund

batance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Wit



in developing and evaluating the County's accounting systerm, consideration s gwven to the
adequacy of intermal accounting controfs.  In general, accounting controls are designed (o provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of asseils against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and
maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the costof a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the valuation of costs and benefils requires

estimates and judgments by management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework, VWe believe the County's internal
accounting controls adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of proper recording

of financial transactions.

The County maintaing an intermal audit staff that reports to the County Executive. This internal
audit staff performs periodic and regular financial and operational audits throughout the County's agencies
and departments. The Legislature maintains an office responsible for "Legislative Oversight” activities.

Both of these organizations enhance the internal control of the County's government.

The activities of the General, Special Revenue and Debt Service funds are included in the annual
appropriated budget. The Capital Projects Fund is budgeted on a project ba;:‘sis, The budgetary controls
(that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount} are established at
the department level. Budgetary control is also maintained over appropriations by the encumbrance of

purchase amounts prior fo the release of purchase orders to vendors.

it



Generat Fund

The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of the County in that it includes all

revenues and expenditures not required by law to be accounted for in other funds. For the year ended

December 31, 1996, actual expenditures and other financing uses exceeded actual revenues and other

financing sources by $8,968,777  The fund balance, increased from $9.509 708 at December 31, 1895 1o

$18.478 485 at December 31 1098,

These results are summarized as follows:

1986
Budget as 1996 1955
Revised Actual Actual
Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $ 285397 541 $ 2604318685 $ 258,930,086
Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses 2721688 152 250 482 08 251,496 227
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures
. and Cther Uses (6770611 8988777 (2,568 161)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 8770611 9,508,708 11,838,740
Residuat Equity Transfer - - 236,120
Fund Balance - End of Year 3 . % 19,478 485 3 9,508,708

Of the total fund balance of $19.478 485 at December 31, 1896, $1 762 783 has been reserved for

encumbrances, prepaid expenditures, law enforcement and the Stop-DWi Program. The Designation for

section 8 totaled $92.474. The amount designated for 1997 is $1.500.000 rasulting n an undesignated

fund balance of $16.123 228 as of December 31, 1996,



Revenues and Cther Financing Sources

Revenues and other financing sources in the General Fund of $260,431,685 fell short of the revised
budget of $265,397,541 by 34.965856. Actual revenues and other financing sources increased by
$1,501.619 from 1995 to 1896, The revenues and other financing sources and the changes from 1995 are

shown in the following table:

Increase
{Decrease) Percent of
Revenues and Percent from Increase
Other Financing Sources Amount of Total 1895 {Decrease)
Revenues:

Real property {axes 3 55727856 214% % 5660515 11.3%
Other tax ilems 6,357 481 2.4 (371,882 5.5)
Non-property taxes 75,554,316 29.0 4,268 002 55
Departmental income 21,200,215 8.1 (7,039,543 {24 8)
Use of money and property 1,604 634 06 33,821 22
Licenses and permils 778,343 g3 {26,203} (3.3
Fines and forfeitures 482 188 02 (86 586) {15.2}
Saie of property and :

compensation for loss 30,323 G0 {364 348} {92.3)
Interfund revenues 3,481,305 1.3 (3738611 {(16.7}
State aid 60,058 508 231 345 158 086
Federal aid 28,802 020 111 (609,470} (2.1)
Miscelianeous 1.675.048 0.6 (374348 (24.3)

Total Revenues 255 752 244 98 1 1,062 395
Other Financing Sources -

Operating transfers in 4679441 1.8 439.224 104

Total Revenues and Other

Financing Sources 1000% $ 1501612

The increase in real property taxes resulted primarily from a change in the New York State Reat
Property Tax Law which reduced enforcement procedures from four years to two years, as well as an
increase in collection efforts.  Non-property taxes represent primarily an increase in sales tax which i
representative of the State-wide increase and favorable economic conditions. Departmental income

decreased due to the creation of the General Services internal Service Fund.



Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Actual expendifures and other financing uses in the General Fund for the vear ended December 31,
1986 were 32504672 808 or 321705244 less than the revised budget of 3272168152 The aciusl
expenditures decreased $11.033.319 from 1985 to 1986, The actual expenditures and other financing
uses for the year ended December 31, 1996 compared to the vear ended December 31, 1995 for

governmental functions are shown in the following table:

increase
{Decrease} Percent of
Expendiures and Percent from Increase
Other Financing Uses Amount of Total 1995 (Decrease}
Expendiures:
Current:
General government support ¥ 268086815 104% § (6779334 (20 8Y%
Education 17 761,342 7.1 715,854 42
Public safety 28.503,784 1.4 (G04 45873 (3.1}
Health 22,848 339 g1 448 461 2.0
Transportation 13 520,351 54 (355,347) {26}
Economic opportunity and
developmerd 104,619,304 4.2 (2,818 354) (2.7}
Culture and recreation 805,101 0.4 80,548 g7
Home and communily services 2,584 402 1.0 (287 .145) 10.0
Employee benefits 391 261 g1 124,681 46 8
Debt service 1,246,528 8.5 749,861 15
Total Expenditures 214 467 231 856 (9,026 251}
Other Financing Uses -
Operating transfers out 35995677 14.4 (2.007.068) (53

Total Expenditures and

Cther Financing Uses 100.0% 3 (11033319

The decrease i general government support was due to the creation of the General Services
internal Service Fund.  Economic opportunity and deveicpment decreases were a result of increased

conirotb instituted by cur Depariment of Sccial Services and a decrease in client population.

xi



Special Revenue Funds

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

The combined amounts of revenues and other financing sources for the Special Revenue Funds for
the year ended December 31, 1956 compared o the yvear ended December 31, 1885 are shown in the

following table:

increase
(Decrease) Percent of
Revenues and Percent from Increase
Cther Financing Sources Amount of Total 1995 (Decrease)
Revenues:
Real property taxes 3 15,786,463 543 % & (248 587) (1.5) %
Departrental income 146 240 a5 77.433 112.5
Use of money and property 954,318 32 237 402 333
Licenses and permits 12,705 0.0 (7,415} (369
Fines and forfeitures 10,178 0.0 (G028 470
Sale of property and
compensation for loss 454 8.0 (4,494} (30.8)
interfund revenues 166,166 0.6 (16,288) 8.9
State aid 820,874 2.8 24,216 3.0
Federal aid 3.038.887 10.4 (8G7 267) (22.8)
Miscellaneous 466 207 1.6 151,747 483
Total Revenues 21,402 492 73.4 {692 281
Other Financing Sources -
Operating transfers in 7,593,121 266 . 187.972 25

Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $. 29095 613 160.0%

The decrease in Federal aid represents a reduction in our Community Development Fund. The

commencement of various Federal programs were delayed.

X



Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

The combined amounts of expenditures and other financing uses for the Special Revenue Funds
for the year ended December 31, 1996 compared to the year ended December 31, 1985 are shown in the

following table:

Increase
(Decrease) Percent of
Expenditures and Percent from increase
QOther Financing Uses Amount of Total 1995 (Decrease)
Expendiures:
Current:
Transportation $ B 408402 258% % 1,150,460 15.8%
Economic opportunity and
development 2,802 289 132 (948,718) {253)
Home and community servicas 9,140 822 303 564 504 5.6
Employes benefits 1,295,320 4.5 28,735 2.3
Debt service 416,839 1.0 136,839 489
Total Expenditures 22063672 746 932 920
Other Financing Uses -
Operating transfers out 7454284 254 218727 39
Total Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses 29.517.9 1000% $ 1211647

The increase in transporiztion resulted in our expanded effort to repar and improve the County
roads and bridges. The decrease in economic opportunity and development represents the decrease in

our Community Development Fund, since Federal projects were delayed.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises
or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues eamed, expenses
incurred and/or net income s necessary for management accountability. Enterprise funds are used to

account for operations that provide services 1o the public. Internal service funds account for operations

it



that provide services to other departments or agencies of the government or to other govermnments, on a

cost reimbursement basis. The operations of the Summit Park Hospital/Rockland County Infirmary are

recorded as an enterprise fund. The County has established its Workers' Compensation Benefits, General

Liability Claims, Unemployment Benefits, Health Benefit and General Service funds as internal service

funds.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee or custodial capacity.

Fiduciary funds include Expendable Trust and Agency funds. The expendable trust funds include funds

held in trust and reserved for social service programs, The Agency Fund reflects the contributions by the

County employees to a deferred compensation plan. The current market value of these contributions was

$51,738,854 as of December 31, 1996

Fixed Assets

The fixed assets of the County are those assets used in governmental and proprietary fund type

operations. Fixed assets consist of land, buildings, improvements, equipment and construction-in-progress

which are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. No provision

for depreciation is made on fixed assets except for that recorded in the proprietary fund. The total fixed

assets as of December 31, 1998 are as follows:

Land

Buildings

fmprovements other than
buiidings

Equipment

Construction-in-progress

Accurmulated depreciation

Total

Proprietary Funds

internal
Genaral Ernterprise Service
Government Fund Funds Tota

$ 78198600 % 360,000 3
40,518.492 16,221,805

336,972,039 345,975
22,264,416 24,941 467
252,540,019 4,124 603

- & 8179600
2,980 56,743,377

- 337.318.014
2,912,169 50,118,052
- 256664622

660,114,566 45,953,950

2,815,149 708,023,665
(2.472.136) __ (27 378.331)

$ 660114566 $ 21087755 ¢

443013 § 681645334

Xiv



DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The County of Rockdand, New York has received a bond rating from Moody's Investors Service of
A1 which reflects the County's sound financial management.  Future debt andicipated within the next five

years will be financed through a combination of bonds and notes as marke! conditions warrant,

The long-termn bonded debt outstanding at December 31, 1896 totaled 3135818500, During the
fiscal year, the County amortized $13 832 448 in principal and interest costs totaled $7 679,230

Revenue anticipation notes and bond anticpation notes ocutstanding at December 31, 1696 were

$15.000,000 and 320,026,000, respectively.

The ratio of net general long-term debt to assessed valuation and the amount of net general long-
term debt per capita are useful to citizens of the County, Investors and management as indicators of the

County's debt position:. At December 31, 1898, this data was as foliows:

Ratio of Net
General
Long-Term Net General
Debt to Long-Term
Assessed Debt per
Armount Valyation Capita
Net general long-term debt $ 106,509,715 112 % % 38313

CASH MANAGEMENT

The County of Rockland rwestment policies are governed by Mew York State siatutes as more fully
described in the notes to the financial statements. The County primarily invests #s idie cash with local
banks. These investments are placed using a competitive bid process which enables the County to obtain

the best available rate.

XY



A summary of the County's interest earnings for the vear ending December 31, 1996, compared to

December 311995, by fund. is as follows:

Fund 1998 1985

General $ 1431587 % 537,033
Community Development 13,341 11,736
Senmer 940 977 705 180
Debt Service 2.931.041 2,583 484
Workers' Compensation Benefits 278,774 235796
General Liagbtity Claims 389,189 328,133
Unemployment Benefits 1,210 1.031
Health Benefils 137.067 54 480
Expendable Trust 2.058 1.911%

Total $ B,123244 $ 4455794

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is self-insured for general liability, health benefils, unemployment benefits and workers’

compensation benefits, The County also has an extensive employee accident prevention program.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Legisiative Board has followed a practice of having an independent audit by a certified public
accounting firm even though it is not required by New York State Law. This practice has been complied

with and the independent auditors’ opinion is inciuded in the repori.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Govermment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (CAFR) to the County of Hockiand, New
York for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995 The
Certificate of Achievement s a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest

standards for preparation of state and local government financial reporis.

i



in order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to
program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and appiicable

legal requirements,

A Certificate of Achievemnent is valid for a period of one year only. We belleve our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requiremeants, and we are submitting it (o

GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department, | should like to express my appreciation
to all the members of the Department and to our independent auditors, Bennett Kielson Storch & Company
LLF‘, who assisted and contributed o its preparation. | would also fike to thank the County Executive and
the members of the County Legislature for their interest and support in the financial operation of the
County.

Respecthully submitied,
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George W. Renc
Commissiongr of Finance
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Association of the United States and Canada to
government umits and public emplovee retirement
systerns whose comprehensive annual fnancial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
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Stuart 5. Stengel
Dawvid A Yablon

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT Nicholas DeSantis

Domenick Consolo
To the Honorable Legislature of the Bruce L. Biasnik
County of Rockiand, New York: Susan L. Friend

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the County of Rockland, New York
as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996 as listed i the accompanying table of contents,
These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the County's management,
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financiatl statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Home and Infirmary Fund. We also
did not audit the financial statements of the Rockiand County Industnal Deveiopment Agency (a
component unit) for the year ended December 31, 1996, which represents 06% and .007%,
respectively, of the assets and revenues and other financing sources of the component units.
Theose financial staterments were audited by other audilors whose report thereon has been
furnished to ug, and our opinion on the general purpose financial statements insofar as it relates
to amounts included for the enterprise fund and the Industrial Development Agency in the
component unit columns s based on the reporis of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about
whether the generai purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on & test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
general purpose financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general
purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opmion,

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the general purpose
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ali matenal respects, the financial position
of the County of Rockland, New York, at December 31, 1996 and the resuiis of its operations and
cash flows of its propretary fund types for the vear then ended in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 2.
1997 on ocur consideration of the County of Rockland's intemal condrol structure and a report
cdated May 2. 1887 on s complianee with laws and reguiations.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statementis taken as a whole. The accompanying financial information listed as combining and
individuat fund financial statements and schedules in the table of contents is presented for the
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial
statements of the County of Rockland, New York. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, i our
opirion and the opinion of the other auditors, is fairly presented i alt material respects in relation
to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The information listed i the
statistical section of the table of contents has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the general purpose financal statements, and accordingly, we express no
opinion on i

May 2, 1997

pong LL7

CRNE BARKER AVENUE o WHITE PLAINS, NEW YORK 106011505 « (913 321-5600 ¢« FAX 19145 421-565%
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENTY UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 1996
{With Comparative Totals for 1995

ASSETS
Cash and Eguivatents
Investments

Investment of Employees” Deferred
Compensation, at market value

Taxes Receivable, net of allowance Tor
uncolfectibie taxes
Other Receivatiles:
Accounts
Accoutits - Patient care
Loans and tuition
State and federal aid
Jue from ather govemnments
D from component unit
e from othet funds

Allowance for uncollectible amounts

Frepad Experditures/Expenses
fnventories

Fixed Assets
Accurmulated Depreciation

Restricted Assets
Amount Avadable in Debl Service Fund

Arrour 1o be Provided for General
Long-Term Uebt

Total Assets

Governmental Funds

Praprietary Funds

Special bt Capital internat

General Revenue Service Promects Enterprise
§ 13461587 % 96890 § 1324370 § 3V4BB080 & 5151824 § 3208335
- 10,345 000 13,121,804 10,844,393 12,470 000

42084 585 -
1. 205.083 253301 264 803 839 470 276025
- - - 13.971.245 .
- 726,532 . . R .
43,630,391 341,405 145,887 1126812 63 456
5.315 103 - - - -
. 1.215.060 - : -
- 730070 726638 - 3,024,555 7.744 723
61,148,877 2.045 308 2.357.338 1126812 17785271 8.084 204
{442,156} LARBIREAsY
50,706 381 2,045 308 2387 338 +,126,812 18,166,325 8084 204
343,185 51,067 - 172,880 43,474
i 238,838 §0.431
- - 45993 950 2.915149
- 24 808 185 (2,472 1363
: 21,087,756 443013

. 7 2403 851

$ 118585762 § 12538255 § 16803 512

$ 56676245 3 41 828622

5 24430457




Totals Totals
Figtuctary (Memorandum Componearnt Reporting Dntity
Funds Accourd Groups Ondys Unis {Memorandurm Only)
Generat Generat
Trust and Fixed Long-Term Primary
Lhgenty Assets Dent Gopvernment L 1895
§ 4185378 % & 64 595 484 5 10677306 % 75672750 § 104383731
............ 46781197 el ABTELAST 22970817
51,738 G54 51,738 954 51,738 954 4% BEZ (04
: - 42,084,589 42084588 45626230
306 12,541 982 58 414 12,900 382 14,178 853
. 13,921.246 - 13,921,246 12,110,173
720,532 1043883 1,764,515 2,138.5%7
45 308 561 848 897 46 047 458 42 830276
6.315,103 28,882 §.343 885 3.431.574
1.215.000 - 1,215,000 1.565.00G
- 2. Ae5 485 522,219 12,747 705 7,476,128
306 42 547 910 2.352 391 G4 GO0, 307 83,731 615
(3,061,942} (502 668} (36638113 (3,485 215)
300 §9.486.768 1,749 722 91,236 480 B0.236.400
510,608 814,606 488206
334,269 330,269 388,940
660.114 566 TOR.023.655 12.793.530 FET1.817.168 648 938 81¢
(27,378,331 _ - (27 378331 123,504 1433
660,114,566 651,845 3034 12,793 535 694,438 864 675 344 878
........ 7240851 24781155 32022008 1704758
18,715.73¢ 16,715,730 16,715,730 18287 756
................................................... 107,948,120 107,948, 120 T 17 848120 112,986 341
$ 55074632 § 6601714566 § 124563850 § 1108577802 § 50001773 § 1458576615 § 1112 110657

(Continued:



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

ALl FUKND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31,1996
(With Comparative Totals for 1985)

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

liabilities:
Accounts payable and relained percentages
Accrued Habifities
Employee payroll deductions
Deposits
Due to retirarnent system
e to other governments
Due to schoot districts
(g (o primary governmend
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues - Taxes
Deferred revenyes - Other
Deferred compensation payable o employees
Bond inferest and matured bonds payabie
Revernue anticipation note payvable
Bond anticipation notes payabis
Notes payable
Loans payabie
Bonds payable

Total Ligbitities

Eguty and Gther Credis
irvestment in generasl fixed assels
Contributed capital
Retained earmngs (Deficit)
Fund balances
Reserved for sncumbrances
Resarved for prepaid expendilures
Reserved for law enforcement
Reserved for STOP - DWW Program
Reserved for long-term receivable
Reserved for socia! $erviceg programs
Regsarved for debt service
Reserved for student loans
Resarved for parklands
Unresaryed:
Designated for affordable housmg
Oesignated for Section &
Designated for transponation projects
Designated for subseguent
years expenditures
Undesigrated

Totat Equity and Cther Crediis

Totat Liabittes gty ang Other Cradits

The accompanying notes are an infegrat part of the financial statements

Gowgrnmantal Funds

Proprietary Funds

Speciat Crebt Capial intermnal
General Revenue Senvi Projects Enterprise Service
$ 3483192 % 325927 § - % 2288248 1472083 8 108185
21,164 248 1.547 568 @054 - 11.374 587 19,249,241
. - t.512.035 27671G
1751307 180,831 3.742 858 -
16,694 173 - - - -
11.493 068 146,035 473,758 109‘38‘%
24 BOG 327 - - - - -
0961 704 764 - 10,508
- TH728 -
16,000,000 . - -
- 18,781,000 1.235.000
- - 12,099,885 493,170
87,117,277 3409394 §7.782 21731837 31,436 445 21.230. 868
. - 131.341
3.068.247
1,193,346 804 360 839 852 -
343185 51,057 -
92270 - -
1334972 - : -
. 79711 1082871 -
15662 759
194 0G0
. 225.000 -
82474 - -
. 3,941 468 -
1,500.000 1,324 038 - - -
16,123,228 6 B54 297 28,971,148 10,382 174
15478485 G128 861 16 715 T30 34 546 408 10, 392,174 3,199,588

§ 116585762

$ 12538258 § 168035812

5 56678246 § 41828677

§ 24430 457




Totals Totals
Fidutiary ihiemorandum Component Reporting Erdity
Funds ) Account Groups Crily}  Units (Memorandum Only)
General Generat '
Trust and Fixed Lang-Term Primary
_______ Agancy Assels ] Debit Governmant 1508 1665
§ $ $ 15288308 % 2.8BOTSY S 18.158.052 3 18191 445
- 53.359.79% 2068707 56,428 506 55676108
54250 54 280 - 54 250 1.256
3,135,244 - - 3135244 3,135,244 3783 464
- - 1438 405 3.227.15C ‘ 3EZT 80 4 570,610
803,137 - - 5,578,133 1514954 8230087 G 942 305
- - - 15,654,173 - 16,594,173 15746879
- - 1215000 1215000 1,565,000
3241 - 12,225 488 522,218 TR T4, 705 7476128
- - 20.800.327 - 20,800,327 258.808 991
- - 1,506 233 3377 088 4883321 6,311,578
51,738,954 51.738 954 - 51,738,954 49 682 004
- 78728 78728 594772
- 15,000,000 5000000 25,000,000
- 20.026.600 20,026,000 7.600.004
- - 2,500,000
- - - - 541 649
123,225 445 135818500 34 332 534 170,151,434 142,755 500
55834 826 124 663 850 355,512,283 47 057 658 402,564 938 380,253,960
- 660,114,566 860.114 566 B60,114,566 850,106,356
- 131,341 . 134,341
3,068 247 2,363,833 5432 180 {342,158}
2,837,558 £.B37 558 3,761,198
- 394,252 394,252 305,387
82270 42,270 53,776
133.972 133,872 178092
. - 1,123.082 1.123.082 TRIE 115
89,866 89,806 89.806 §7.835
- - 15,662 759 - 15,662,759 16,839,204
- - 137778 137778 137.306
184,000 - 194 000 194,000
- 225000 - 225000 225 008
- §2.474 92.474 78,381
3.941 408 3.941.408 -
- 2.824 038 - 2824036 5.640.618
- 63 140,848 442 347 B3 583,185 52065474
B9 806 G600, 114,566 - 754 065 616 2,944,058 757009677 731,858,867
§ 65024632 § 660114566 § 124683 850 § 1100577902 % 50001713 § 1150579615 % 1112 110657




COUNTY OF ROCKLAKD, NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 1N FUND BALANCES
ALL COVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES. EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED

COMPONENT UNIT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 311686
{(With Comparative Totals for 1985)

Revenuyes:
Reat property taxes
Cther tax items
Mon-property t8xes
Departmental income
Use of money and property
Licenses and permis
Fines ang forfelfures
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Interfund revenues
State and
Federal sid
hMiscellaneous

Total Revanues

Expenditures

Current.
Generat gevermment support
Education
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic apportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Emplovee tenefits

Debt Service
Principat
interest

Capitat Qutlay

Total Expendiures

Excess {Deficiency) of Heverues
Cver Expenditures

Oither Financing Sources (Uses)
Proneeds from senal bonds
Cperating transfers in
Cperating transfers out
Operating transfers out - Component umt

Totat Other Financimg
Seurces {Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over Expend-
tures and Other Uses

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Residual Equity Transter

Fund Balances - End of Yesr

Governmental Funds

Speciat Debt Capital
General _ Reverue Service Protects
55727856 § 15786483 3% - %
5,357 491 - -
75.554 318 - .
21.200.215 146,240 - -
1.604.834 954 318 2531041
778,343 12,705 -
482 188 15,178 -
30,323 454
3,481,305 166,166 . -
60,058 505 820,874 756,431 6,098,046
28,802 020 3.038.887 54,348 2,444 754
'''''''''''' 1,675,048 456,207 386,106 2330228
285 752 244 21,402 482 4,137 876 B 776,028
26,086,819 - -
17,761,342 - -
28,503,784 - -
27848, 338 -
13.520,351 8.408,402 -
100,619,304 2802289 -
305,101 - . -
2,584,402 9,140 822 -
391.281 1.285.320 -
- - 11,805,840
1,246 528 416,839 7.273.529 -
- S L AET0 T8
214,487 231 220683672  1887938% 17270776
41,285 013 {661 180} (14,741,303} {8,404 748}
- - - 8,365,000
4 879,441 7,893,121 18,547,934 720 550
(5307777 {7,454 284 {5378 5687} (321,613
[10.687,500) S : :
(31,318 236} 238837 13169367 6763837
9968 777 (422,343} (1572028 (1.730.8%1}
8509708 8.551.204 18,287 756 36677220

$ 19478485 § 9128861 $ 16715730 § 34.946.409

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



5

89806 3 80359291 §

Totals Tolats
Fiducary {Mamorandum Component Reporting Entity
Funds Cirily) Urut {Memorandum Only}
Sou and Water
Expendable Primary Conservation
Trusts Government Liistrict 1996 i

F T O7TE14310 % - % 71514318 & A6 107381
- 5357 481 - 6.357 491 6 726 483

- 75 B54 316 - 75 554 316 71285314

6625 21 353083 7% 438 21,432,521 28,441 326
2.058 5.492.051 741 5492 792 4 874 380

- 761,048 . 781,048 824 666

- 492 366 487 38& 587 4980

- 36,777 - 30777 154619

- 3647 471 - 647 471 4 037 370

- B7 733,858 15,883 67 750,839 63,788 3588

- 34 350,058 t 829 34,351 Q88 33,704 855

- 27680 58% B85 2.758% 474 6,364 202

8686 200,077 428 894978 280177 402 287,138,947

26 086,816 - 26,086 819 32 B&& 183

17,761,342 - 17,761,342 17.045 488

28,503,784 28 503784 2G 408 241

22 B4B8 339 - 22,848,339 22, 399 878

- 21,828,753 - 21,828,753 21,133 840

16815 03,438,408 103,438 408 107,208 688

- 405,101 G5, 131 824 572
11,725,224 125,685 11,850,914 11,579,088

1.688 5814 - 1,686 581 1,532,185

11,605,840 11 6805 B4G 11221783

8,536 898 B 938 885 £.291,33%

17270776 17,270,778 7602033

18.815 277697 BE3 125895 272,823 558 271,113,067
LAY 17,379,563 {25 719} 17,353 844 16,028 875
0,365 000 - 6,365,000 13,121 000

- 31.641 088 31 641 048 37,604 5268
- {38,462 241y - {38 452 741} (45 BB3 7TB}
(10,687 00} 110887 900y (10,687 900y
(11.144.045) {11,144 085} (8.848 152}

8128 & 235 468 (25718 6,208,749 TABG TS

g7 435 T4 123 823 27 421 74151 244 67 754 405
- - (793 884

1,702 3 803680983 § 747151244




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVERUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES N FURD BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 311596

Revanues
Reat property taxes
Cther tax dems
Mon-property taxes
Departmental ncoms
Lise of money and property
Licenses and permils
Fines and forfeitures
Sate of property and compen-

sation for loss

interfund revenues
Siate aid
Faderal ad
Miscelianeous

Total Revenuss

Expenditures:
Current:
General government support
Education
Bublic safety
Health
Transportation
Economic cpporiunity
and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community
SerVIces
Employee benefits
Debt Service:
Principal
inferast

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Rev-
anues Cver Expenditures

Ciher Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in
Onerating transfers out
Cperating transfers out - Component unit

Tatal Other Financing
Sources (Lises)

Excess (Deficiency) of Rev-
enues and Other Sources
Civer Expenditures and
Other Uses

Fund Bafances - Beginnng
of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

Genergt Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Varance Yarance
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabie) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 4BB338B7 § 55727856 % GEUIU8Y S 1588G107 3 15785463 & 96 358
8,450 000 £, 357 491 {52 509 - - -
76.000,000 75,554 316 (445 B84} - - -
23.027 268 21200215 (1827053 105 D00 146 240 41 240
1.085.008 1604634 533,834 600 000 G54 318 354 318
830,006 778,343 {51,657 B.GOO 12,7085 4705
496 301 482 188 {14 113} 15 606G 13178 {4.822)
17,000 30323 13,323 - 454 454,
2 866,065 3.481 308 515,240 473 268 166166 {307 084y
67 801 813 60,058 505 {7 843108} 864,720 820874 (43 848y
31688722 28802020 {2.886,702) 3752191 3038 887 {713.304;
4 424 1875 048 240,124 277 852 466 207 TRE 355
260 720 780 255782 244 {4,968 516} 21,786,130 21,402 492 {383 838
28,953 068 26,086,819 3,866 249 281 840 - 281 840
21725724 17.761.342 3,864 382 - - -
25 865 429 ZB.503784 1,361,645 -
24 382 558 22 848 338 1,534,255 - - -
13,838,578 13.820.351 38,227 8747 351 8 408 402 338,349
110 147 248 100,619,304 G527 818 3512 601 2,802,288 710312
G186 611 905 101 11,510 - - -
2,780,204 2.584 402 205802 10,808,307 9,140,822 1 468 485
497 904 391 281 106,638 1,384,006 1.495 320 B8 6880
1,246,528 1,246 528 - 416,839 416,839
235363868 214467231 20896628 24951938 22063672 2888266
25,356 801 41 285013 15828,112 {3,165.808) (861,180) 25045828
4 676781 4 878 441 2.660 7 683,571 7 893 121 9,600
(26,116,353 (25387777 308 616 (7 BT 65543 (7 454 284) 53370
{10,687,900y (10,687,900} - - - -
{32 127 5123 (31.316.2367  B11.278 165 BE7 238 837 72970
(BT7061H G 968777 16,735 388 (2599941 (422343} 2577 588
6770811 9,509,708 2,735 067 7,999 341 9,551,204 5551 2683
s § 19478485 § 19478485 § . $. 228861 § 9128861

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Dbt Service Fund

Totals (Memorandum Only)

Varance Vatiance

Hevised Favorable Hewvisad Favorable
Budgetl Actuat {Unfavorable} Budget Actuat {Unfavorable)
- 3 $ $ B4523874 F 71514318 $  5.990.345
- - £ 450 000 8 357 491 {82 5083
- 76,000,000 75 554 316 (445 684}
- - - 23,132 2688 21,346 455 (1,785 813

2,931 041 2.931.041 1,665,006 5,489,993 3824 993
. - 838 000 791 048 (46 952}
. - 511,301 492 3668 (18,935

- - 17 004G BTV 13777

- - - 3,439325 3647 471 208 148
756,431 756,431 68,766,333 51,635 810 {7.130.523;
- 64 388 54,398 35 450,913 31,905,305 {3545 B08;

18,299 386,108 367 BO7 LR TE 2,527 381 7958 286
18,259 4137 878 4119677 282 525 188 2BT2827Y2 (1237 477)

- - 30,234 808 26,086 819 4 148088

- - 21725724 17,761 342 3,864 382

- B 25 BG5S 429 2B 803784 1.361 648

- - - 44 382 588 22 B48 339 1,534,258

- - 22 585928 21.928 753 857 178

- - 113 659 820 103,421 583 10238227

- - HE 611 G055 101 11.510

- 13,388 511 11725224 1674 287

- 1,881,800 1,686 581 195 39

11,844 696  11.605840 38 856 11644 596 11 605.840 38 856
7.348,236 7273529 74,707 9,011,603 8938896 74707
18982932 18878359 113 563 273 308,729 B 410,772 23,898 457
(18,974,633} (14741393 4233240 3,218,460 25882,440 22885 980
19 070,514 18 B4T QR4 (522 580% 31,434,818 30,820,486 1510 320
(5 378.567) {5 378567} - {38012 614 {38,140 628 B71.986
_______________________________ e - _(10887.800)  (10687800) -
13591947 13,189,367 (522 580y (18,268,598 (17908 032 361 668
(5 282 686 (1 872 026} 3716850 {15,053 238 7.974 408 23027 648
8282686  1B2B7756  13.005070 15053 238 37348668 22795 430
% 18715730 % 16715730 § § AB323 076 $é8323876




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUATY
ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1856
(With Comparative Totals for 1985

Operating Revenues.
Charges for services
E-S11surcharge
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Administrative and general expenses
Sataries and wage expenses
Judgments and claimg
Pensicn and employes benefity
Supplies and other expenses
Deprecation
Purchases and stores
Data processing
Mait
Commumnications
Reproduction
Housekeeping
Health complex matenals
Security
Utility plant
Grounds
Atomotive
tainfenance
Provision for bad debis

Total Operating Expensas
income {Loss) From Operations

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Reat property {axes
interest income
interest on indebledness
State ad

Total Mon-Operating Income
(Expenses)

Net income (Loss) Before Operating

Transfers
Cperating Transfers in
et income

Fund Balance/Retaned Eamings
(Deficit) - Beginning of Year

Residuat Equity Transfer

Fund Bafance/Retained Eamings
(Deficity - End of Year

Contributed Capita! - Beginning of Year

Add: Transter In

Contributed Capitat - Endg of Year

Total Eguity - End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of the financial statements

Totals
(Memorandurm  Component
Oniy} Units
Internat
Enterprise Service Prirmary

Fund Funds _Government
$ 59211085 $ 500368308 § 108547384 & 2268388
. 543,795 543,795 -

1.830.527 238 026 2 0B5 B5Y
_ B1,741582 50,819 130 112.560 712 2,268 388
10,669 627 1634671 12,204 208 -
31,807 288 67,347 31874615 11,000
- 55 255 55 2558 -
11,317 488 29,361,737 40,679,236 2438
7 2387681 - 7238781 1608 431
1,751 088 120,557 1,871,646 .
- 10324 589 1,024 589 -
- 3,549 446 1649 448 -
- 363,704 383,704 -

- 710,002 710,062
- 1,282,379 1,282,379 -

- 480 548 480,548
- 1,736,601 1,738,601 -
- 311,642 311,542 -
- 1,582,455 1,582 454 -
- 2033477 2033177 -

- 411,237 411,237
- 402,178 402 178 -
- 1,789,072 1,799,072 -

2210821 - 2,210,924
64,795,165 46936501  111,731.686 619,860
{3 053 583) 3,882,629 B249 048 549 515
: 804,240 804,240 485,630
(367.082% (3% 619 (405,701 {101,288}
- - - 140,160
(367,082} 785,621 398,538 504,454
{3,420 665} 4 848,250 1227 585 1,154 013
6,821 185 - §.821,185
3400530 4 £48 250 B.G48 780 1,154,013
5,991 544 {1 580,003 5411 841 1,237 847
101,392 174 3,068 247 13460421 2381 860

131,341 131,341

131,341 131,341 -
$ 10382174 § 3199588 § 13581782 § 2391860
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Totals
Repaorting Eniity
(Memuorandum Only}

1906 1895
$ 112216752 § £7.116.118
543 795 .
2069553 2228715
114830100 89,338,834
12,204 298 4,106,714
31685615  34.779.087
55.255 1.079.010
40681674  41.477.219
8,845192  10.778.906
1.871.646 1693513
1,024,589 -
3648446
363704 -
710,002 .
1292379 .
480,545 .
1,736,601 .
311,542 -
1,582,458 .
2,033,177 .
411237
402178 .
1,799,072 .
2,210,921 984 480
113,361,535 94.868 899
1478565 (5,530,065
1,779,203
1268870 705,225
{508,997} (446,005}
140,160 44872
903,033 2,083 281
2381588 (3446774
5,821,195 8,279,252
9,202,783 4,832 478
£ 643 488 1.801.726
15284
15 852 281 £ 649 488
........ 13‘?‘347
131341
) 15983622 § 6645458
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996
With Comparative Totals for 19953

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
income (logs) from operations

Adiustments to reconcite income (foss} from operations
to nef cash provided by (used in) operating
achvilies.

Uepreciation and amortization
Provigion for bad debts
Changes in operating assets and kabilites:
Accounts receivable
Accounts recesvable - Patient carg
State and federat aid receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Accounis payabile
Accrued iabilities
Due to retirement system
Jue to other governments
Deferred revenues

Net Cash Provided by (Used i)
Operating Aclivities

Cash Flows From investing Activities:
Interast income
Proceeds from saie of mvestments
Purchase of investmenis

Net Cash Provided by (Used in}
Investing Activities

Cash Fiows From Capital and Reiated
Financing Activities:
Proceeds of notes and loans
Issuance of long-term debt
Retirement of long-term debd
Deposits 1o restricted assets
Interast on indebledness
Aoguisition: and construction of
capital assets

Capitalized interest
Loan from primary government
Repayment to primary govemnment

Met Cash Used it Capital andg
Related Financing Aclivities

Cash Fiows From Non-Capitat

Fingncing Activities:
Residual equity ransier
Due from other funds
Due to other funds
Cperating iransfers
Retirement of long-term debt
interast on indebledness
Real property taxes

MNet Cash Provided by (Used in}
Non-Capital Financing Activities

MNet Incresse (Decrease) in Cash
and Equivalents

Cash and bquivatents - Beginoing of Year
of Year

Cash ared Eguivalents - End

Supplemental schedule of noncash financing acimilies

Totals
(Memorandum  Componant
Only} Urts
} intermal
Enterprise Service Primary
Fund Furds ~— Gaovernrment
$ (XOB3583 § 3882629 % 825 045 % 849 519
1,751,088 120 557 1,871 5848
2,240 @21 - 2.210.821
381,043 {82 380 788 653
(3,401,354 - (3,401,354}
- {851} (351}
71748 {25,336} {32515
58 671 - 58 671 -
(683,419 407 247 (288 1732} 454 341
1,741,538 505,419 2246 957 3B 465
(325.568) 276,710 {48 8583 .
1,836 530) - (1,938,530}
_____ - (1.012) (1.012)
{3,274 371} 5072873 1,798,502 1,142 325
8004 240 B804 240 45G 132
4 080,000 4,080,000 -
(12470000 {12 470,000)
(7 585 760 (7,585 760 455,132
t 235,000 §235000 34,323,138
(1473156} (1473 1563 (3,041,648}
. - (24,781 155}
{475,666} {475 666 -
(1,910,730 {201,801} {2.112.531 (5,154 .252)
- - - (3247 473
(350,000
(Z628552)  (U180%)  (2B30383)  (2291390)
(1322.027) (3720874 (5.042,808;
{22 458} {22 458}
5821185 5,821,185
(181,434} (41,570 (223,004
{166,985} (38619 {205,604}
5150748 (3823 516} 1327230
(752.174y  (BB3RIZ07Y  (7.290.381) (549,953
58139988 9837542 15751540 2880348

E61R74 $ 32007335 S RBAB1 150 § 2230415

Met transfer of agsets and Habiities from the General Fund (o the Intermal Seevice Funds

The Enterpnise Fund transferred net assets of $1 414 28¢ and nel liabilities of §1 414 2688

ta the Generat Services Fund,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fnancial sialements

31,341




Toials
Reporting Entity
(Mermorandum Only}

e L EEE

% 147B.565 § (5530085

1871646 1683513
2.210.821 954 480
268 653 {833,854
{3401 .354) {2.019.828)
(951} (63,005}
{32.515) (183,838}
58871 10.610
168,169 1304332

2285422 11.198,764
{48,858} 2,008,685
{1,936,5307 (2,215,186}

(1,012} 11,520
2,940,827 6537137
1263372 599 438
4.080.000 264 684

(12.470.000) _ (3,000.000

(7.126 628)  (2,035.878)

- 1041648

35558 138 2425000
{4,514 805 (1.512 683

(24781 155 -
{475 666} (H11 580)

(7.266.783; (5225 883
(3,247 472 -

- 1,865,000
(350,000) {300,060}
(5081 743)  (318,507)

: 15,284

(5042.898)  (1.500,142)
(22.459) 127.317
5821195 8279252
(223004} (194,569}
(205604} (203.371)

........ - 77?8‘263
1327230 B302.974

{7940 314} 12 485 726
18631888 5,146 162

§.10891574 & 18631888
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL FUNDS
COMMUNITY COLLEGE FUND (COMPONENT UNIT)
YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1958

(With Comparative Totals for 1885)

Current Funds

Loan

Unrestricted ~  Restricted Fund

Revenues - Educational and general $ 25552204 % 5139920 % 472
Expenditures - Educational and general 36,639 659 5,138,920 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expendifures {11.087 455} - 477
Other - Operating transfers in - Primary government 10,687 900 - -
Net increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance {399 555} - 472
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 812,273 - 137 306
Fund Balance - End of Year $ 412,718 § - % 137,778

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Totals

¥

1696 1945
30692596 § 33351677
41778579 44 663,821

5

(11,086,883}

(11,312,204}

10,687,900 10.687.900
(399.083) (624,304)
949,579 1,573,883
550,496 $ 949 579
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER CHANGES
COMMUNITY COLLEGE FUND (COMPONENT UNIT)

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1896

{With Comparative Totals for 1985}

Current Funds

Unrestricted _ Restricted
Revenues:
Educational and Senerall
Student revenues $ 11559628 % -
Other revenues 1,898,918 360 245
Federal and State sponsored grants 5,888,188 4776675
Revenues in lieu of local sponsor grant 2,105 470 -
Total Revenues 25,552 204 5138820
Expenditures:
Educational and General:
instructional and departmental research 12,735,788 -
Sponsored research and other programs - 952 214
Libraries 348 407 -
Extension and public service 824 487 -
Student services and programs 2,542 927 -
Student wages “ 228269
Academic support 365192 -
Maintenance and operation of plant 4072364 -
Scholarships and fellows - 3858437
General administration and institutionatl services 8,137 584 -
Employee benefits 7.612,93C -
Totat Expenditures 38 638 658 5.138.920
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures (11,087 455} -
Other - Operating transfers in - Primary government 10,687 900 -
Deficiency of Revenues and Cther
Sources Over Expenditures g {300 BREY § "

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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Totals

19596 1995
$ 11589628 § 12075284
£,359.163 2.891.327
14.667 863 16,566 555
2,105,470 1,816,494
30,682,124 33,348 660
12,735,788 13,153,444
852,214 1,275,419
348,407 411,421
B24 487 918,669
2.542.927 2,322,434
228 269 217 871
365,192 444 143
4072364 4 579 571
3,959 437 4,638,325
8,137 584 B.784 529
7,612,830 7,912,483
41,779.57¢9 44 658 379
(11,087 455} (11,308 719y
10,687 800 10,687 300
$ (309.555) § (620,815
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31. 1996

Note 1 - Sumimary of Sionificant Accounting Policles

The County of Rockiand, New York was established in 1798 and operates in accordance with its
charter, County Law and the vanous ofher applicable laws of the State of New York. The County functions
under a County Executive/l egisiature form of government. The County Legislature is the legisiative body
responsible for overall operation of the County. The County Executive serves as the chief executive officer
and the Commissioner of Finance serves as the chief financial officer. The County provides the following
services fo s residents: educsation, public safety, heaith, transporiation, economic opportunity and
development, culture and recreation, home and community services and general and administrative
support,

The accounting policies of the County of Rockiand, New York conform o generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to govemments and the Uniform Systemn of Accounts as prescribed by
the State of Mew York. The Governmertal Accounting Standards Board (GASB]) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a
summary of the County's more significant accounting policies:

A Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government which is the County of
Rockland, b) organizations for which the County is financially accountable and c} other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such
that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incompiete
as set forth in GASE Statement No. 14,

In evaluating how to define the County, for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision fo include a potential component unit in the
County’s reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASE Statement No. 14,
including legal standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability. Based upon the above
criteria, the following individual component units are included in the County's reporting entity
because of their operational relationship with the County.

The Rockland County Community College was established in 1959 with the County of
Rockland as the local sponsor under provisions of Adticle 126 of the Education Law. The College is
administered by a board of frustees consisting of nine voting members; five are appointed by the
County Legislature and four by the Governor. The College budget is subject to the approval of the
County Legisiature, The County provides one-half of the capital costs and one-third of the
operating costs for the Coflege. Title to real property of the College vests with the County and
bonds and notes for Coillege capital costs are issued by the County and are County debt. A fiscal
year ending August 31st is mandated by State Law for the Coliege. The College is inciuded in the
County’'s reporting entity since the primary government is able to impose its will, as demonstrated
through the ability to approve budgets. The College may also result in a financial burden to the
primary government since the County is obligated for the debt of the College. The Coilege has
heen reflected as a discretely presented component unit,

The Rockland County Industrial Development Agency is a public benefit corporation created
by State legisiation to promote the economic welfare, recreation opportunities and prosperity of the
County's inhabitants. Members of the Agency are appointed by the County Legislature. Agency
members have complete responsibility for managemaent of the Agency and accountabiiity for fiscal

18



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, KEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
CECEMBER 31, 1896

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

matters  The County is not liable for Agency bonds of notes. The governing board of the Agency
serves at the pleasure of the County Legistature and therefore, the primary government s able o
impose s will on the Agency. Since the Agency does not provide services entirely or aimost
entirely to the County of Rockland, the financial statements of the Agerncy have been reflected as 2
discretely presented component unit.

The Rockiand County Scil and Water Conservation District was established pursuart o
New York State Soil Conservation District Law and legislative resolution. The District provides for
the conservation of sofl and soll resources of the State and the County. The Board of Directors are
appointed by the County Legislature. The Board of Directors serve at the pleasure of the County
Legisiature and therefore, the primary govemment is able to impose its wili on the District.  Since
the District is also dependent on the financial support provided by the County, the financial
statements of the District have been reflected as a discretely presented component unit,

The Rockiand County Sciid Waste Management Authority 18 a public benefit corporation
created pursuant to the Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority Act constituting Title
13-M of the New York State Public Authorties Law. The Authority provides solid waste
management services to the residents of the County. The Authority is administered by fifteen
members. Eight members are members of the County Legislature, five members are supervisors of
towns within the County and two members are appointed by the County Executive and therefore the
County is considered able to impose its will on the Agency. Authonty members have complete
responsibility for management of the Authority and accountability for fiscal matters. The Authornity
has the power to issue debt and enter into loan agreements. The County is not liable for the
Authority's debt.  Since the Authority does not provide services entirely or almost entirely to the
County, the financial statements of the Authority have been reflecied as a discretely presented
component unit.

MNote 5 presenis condensed financial statements for each of the discretely presented
component units, as well as the addresses of the administrative office to obtain complete financial
statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account
groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts
which  comprise its  assets, liabilities, fund balances/retained eamings, revenues and
expenditures/expenses.  Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose
and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance related legal and
contractual provisions. The County maintains the minimum number of funds consistent with legal
and managerial requirements, Account groups are a reporting device to account for certain assets
and liabilities of governmental funds not recorded directly in those funds. The County's resources
are reflected in the financial statements in eight genenc fund types within three broad fund
categories as well as two account groups, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
princinles as foliows:

19



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 1996

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.

Fund Categories

a.

Govemmental Funds - Governmental Funds are those through which most general
government functions are financed. The acguisition, use and balances of
expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through
governmental funds,

General Fund - The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of the
County in that it includes all revenues and expenditures not required by law io be
accounted for in other funds,

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are established to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources {ofher than proprietary, expendable trusts or
capital projects) that are legally restricted o expenditures for certain defined
purposes. The special revenue funds of the County are as follows:

Courty Hoad Fund - The County Road Fund was established pursuant to
New York State Highway Law and is used to account for the maintenance
and repair of County roads and bndges and snow removal costs.

Road Machinery Fund - The Road Machinery Fund is used to account for the
purchase, repair and maintenance of highway machinery, tools and
equipment and for the purchase, construction and mamtenance of buildings
for the storage and repair of highway machinery and equipment.

Community Development Fund - The Community Development Fund is used
to account for projects financed by entitiements from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development.

Sewer District Fund - The Sewer District Fund is used to account for the
oparation and mamtenance of the County's sewer facilities.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is provided to account for the
accumulation of resources to be used for the redempiion of principal and mterest on
general long-term debt.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities
other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal service funds.
Enterpnse funds are used o account for operations that are financed and operated
in & manner similar to private enterprises or where the govemning body has decided
that pericdic determination of revenues eamed, expenses mcurred and/or net
income is necessary for management accountability. Enterprise funds are used 1o
accourt for those operations that provide services 1o the pubiic. internal service
funds account for operations that provide services (o other departments or agencies

of the government, or to other govemments, on 2 cost reimbursement basis, The
20



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued}
DECEMBER 31, 1996

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

operations of the Summit Park Hospital/Rockiand County Infirmary (Home and
infirmary} are recorded as an enterprise fund. The Home and Infirmary is a chronic
care hospial and a skilled nursing faciity established and operated under provisions
of Article 6 of General Municipal Law. The Coundy has established its Workers
Compensation Benefits, General Liability Claims, Unemployment Benefits, Health
Benefits and General Services funds as internal service funds. The County applies
alt applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASEB) pronouncements in
accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations.

c. Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County
in a frustee or custodial capacity, Fiduciary funds include Expendable Trust and
Agency funds. Expendable trust funds account for assets held by the County in
accordance with terms of a trust agreement.  Agency funds account for assets held
by the County on behalf of others.

2. Account Groups

Account groups are used o establish accounting control and accountability for the
County's general fixed assets and general long-term debl.

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is estabiished to account
for ail fixed assets not accounted for in proprstary fund types.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This account group is established to
account for afl iong-term obligations that are not a specific liability of the proprietary
fund types. .

C. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment appfied o a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Governmental fund types and expendable trust funds are presented using the
flow of current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current
assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheets. Operating staterments
present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets.  The reported unreserved fund balance is a2 measure of
“available spendable resources”

Propristary funds are accounted for on the fiow of economic resources measurement focus.
This measurement focus emphasizes the determination of net income. With this measurement
focus, all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with the operation of
these funds are inciuded on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net tolal assels. The reporied fund equity {net
total agsets) may be segregated nto contributed capital and fund balance/retained earnings
COMPOnenis.

Agency funds are custedial in nature and do not measure results of operations or have a
measurement focus.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
OECEMBER 31, 1996

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed in the governmental fund types,
expendable trust and agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded in the accounting period in which they are "measurable” and "available” to finance current
operations. "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available”
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of
the current period. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) has specified the
principles to be used in the recognition of real property tax revenue. These principles provide that
real property taxes be recognized as revenue only when received in cash during the current period,
or soon enough thereafter to be "available” to meet the obligations of the current period. The term
“available” has been limited to a period not to exceed sixty days subsequent to the end of the fiscal
year unless unusual circumstances are present. A one year availability period is used for revenue
recognition for all other governmentat and expendable trust fund revenues. Revenues susceptible
to accrual include real property taxes, services to other governments and intergovernmental
revenues. Permits, fees and other similar revenues are not susceptible fo accrual because
generally they are not measurable until they are received in cash. if expenditures are the prime
factor for determining eligibility, revenues from Federal and State grants are accrued when the
expenditure is made.

Expenditures, under the modified accrual basis, are generally recognized when the related
fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule are (1) unmatured principal and interest on
general long-term debt which is recognized as an expenditure when due and (2) certain paymenis
to employee retirement systems which are recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group
and recognized as an expenditure when oaid,

The accrual basis of accounting is followed in the proprietary funds.  Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered. Revenues received under cost
reimbursement agreements and prospective contractual agreements represent a substantial portion
of the Home and infimary's revenue and are subject o audit and possible adjustment by the
third-party reimbursement agencies. Retroactively calculated third-party contractual adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the services are rendered and adjusted in future
periods as required.

Component Units

Component units are presented on the basis of accounting that most accurately reflect their
activities. The Soil and Water Conservation District is accounted for on the modified accrusl basis
The College, the Industrial Development Agency and the Solid Waste Management Authority are
accounted for on the accrual basis. The College, however, does not reflect property, plant and
equipment as an asset of the fund and depreciation is not reflected. Property, plant and sgupment
of the College is owned by the County and such assets are reflected in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1996

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

0. Budgetary Date

The County follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data

raflected in the financis! statements:

a)

b

a)

)

Or or before August 1st, the administrative head of each department is required to submit
to the County Executive the expenditure requirements for the next fiscal vear.

The County Legisiature or a designated commitiee reviews the appropriation requests and
the applicable revenue estimates.

The County Executive is required to file the tentative budget for the ensuing year with the
Cierk of the Legisiature on or before October 23rd.

Subsequent to October 23rd, the Legislature conducts the necessary review of the tentative
budget and proposes any changes thereio,

Erior to NMovember 20th, the Legisiature shall hold a public hearing on the budgset.

After the public hearing, the Legisiature may make changes to the budget. The budget shall
he adopted no later than December 7th.

Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a managemeni control device
for General, Special Revenue and Debt Service funds.

Budgets for General, Special Revenue and Debt Service funds are legally adopied annually
on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The Capital Projects
Fund is budgeted on a proiect basis. Annual budgets are not adopted for the Proprietary or
Fiduciary funas.

The County Legislature maintains legal responsibility for all budget amendments and
transfers between functions of expenditure. The County Executive has authority for the
transfer of appropristions within depariments and objects of expenditure.

Appropriations in General, Special Revenue arxd Debt Service funds lapse at the end of the
fiscal vear, except that outstanding encumbrances are reappropriated in the succeeding
year.

Budgeted amounis are as onginally adopted or as amended by the County Legislature,

Individual amendments for the current year were not material in relation to the origngl
appropriations which were amended.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued}
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Mote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, confracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order fo reserve applicable appropriations, is
generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General, Special
Revenue and Capital Projects funds. Encumbrances ouistanding at year-end are reporied as
reservations of fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

Cash and Equivalents - Cash and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand
deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with maturities of less than three
maonths,

The County's investment policies are govemned by State statutes. The County has adopted
its own writlen investment policy which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC insured
commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The County is authorized to use
demand deposit accournts, time deposit accounis and certificates of deposit. Permissible
investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.5. Agencies, repurchase agreements and
obligations of New York State or its political subdivisions.

Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of
deposit at 100% of all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. The County has entered
into custodial agreements with the various banks which hold their deposits. These agreements
authorize obligations that may be pledged as collateral.  Such obligations mclude, among other
instruments, obligations of the United States and #s agencies and obligations of the State and its
municipal and schoot district subdivisions.

Investments - All investments are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for invesiments
of the deferred compensation plan which are stated at market value.

Taxes Receivable - Real property taxes are levied and attach as a lien against the property
on January 1st. County taxes are billed with town taxes and initially collected by the towns on
behalf of the County Real property taxes may be paid between January 1st and January 31st
without interest or penalty. Payments received after January 31st must include mterest computed
at 1% per month from February 1st. The towns retain the first amounts collected to satisfy the
entire amount of their respective tax warrants.  Amounts collected thereafter are remitted to the
County Tax rolis and a listing of the unpaid taxes are retumed to the County in April. A 5% penalty
is added to the unpaid tax which is collected by the County until such taxes are inciuded in the tax
lien sale held in October. |

The County enforces delinguent real property taxes under the provisions of Aricle 11
(Article 11 applies to taxes levied after December 31, 1995 and provides for the foreclosure of tax
sale liens by proceedings in rem) of the Real Property Tax Law. Enforcement procedures set forth
in Article 11 provide that the enforcing officer shall file a petition of foreclosure twenty-one months
after the lien date (the County may extend the filing date for residential and farm property by one or
two years) Such petition is required to be filed with the County Clerk within two business days after

the execution of the petition  After the petition has been filed with the County Clerk, a notice of
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foreclosure must be published in at least two newspapers designated by the enforcing officer. The
published notice shall include the date of the last day on which delinquent taxes may be redesmed.
The redemption date must be at least three months after the notice is first published. i the
delinquent taxes, including all related charges, are not paid on the date specified in the notice of
foreclosure, the Court generally makes a final judgment awarding the property to the County. Such
judgment will contain an order that a deed conveying title to the County shall be prepared, executed
and duly recorded. No proceeding to set aside the deed may be maintained unless proceedings
are commenced within two years from the date of recording the deed. Properties acquired by the
County through tax enforcement procedures must be sold at a2 public auction.

The County is also responsible for collecting and enforcing delinguent school taxes. Such
taxes are coliected by the towns in the County between September 1st and October 31st after
which the school tax rolls and unpaid taxes are remitted to the County. A 5% penalty is added to
the amount of the unpaid school tax. The County collects unpaid school taxes during the month of
November. Any taxes remaining unpaid after this time are relevied, with 2 7% penalty, as County
taxes for the following year. The County must satisfy the full amount of the unpaid school taxes no
later tham Aprit 1st of the vear following the levy of such taxes,

Pursuant to Aricle 14 of the Real Property Tax Law, the County has agreements with
various villages within the County to collect and enforce delinquent village taxes. County tax bills
include amounis relevied, with a 7% penally, for unpaid village taxes where appropriate. The
County must satisfy the full amount of the unpaid village taxes no later than Aprit 1st of the vear
following the levy of such taxes.

Other Receivables - Other receivables include amounts due from other governments and
individuais for services provided by the County  Receivables are recorded and revenues
recognized as eamed or as specific program expenditures are incurred.

Bue From/To Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the County has numerous
transactions between funds to finance operations, provide services and construct assets. To the
gxient that certain transactions between funds had not been paid or received as of December 31,
1996 balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded.

Prepaid Expenditures/Expenses - Prepaid expenditures/expenses consist of employee
retirement and other costs which have been satisfied prior 1o the end of the fiscal year but
represent items which have been provided for in the subseguent year's budget and will benafit such
periods. Reported amounis in governmental funds are equally offset by a reservation of fund
balance which indicates that these amounts do not constitute "available spendable resources”
even though they are a component of current assaeis.

Inventories - The inveniories reflected in the Proprietary Funds are stated at the lower of
average cost or market and consist of materials, supplies and drugs used at the Home and
infirmary and materals and suppiies used by the General Services Fund,  Purchases of
inventoriable tems at other locations are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and
year-end balances at these jocations are not material.
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Fixed Assets - Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed
assets) are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather than in governmental
funds and are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available.
Donated assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date donated. Ne provision for
depreciation is made on general fixed assets. Interest incurred during construction is not capitatized
on general fixed assets. Public domain ("infrastructure”) general fixed assets consisting of certain
improvements other than buildings including roads, bridges, curbs and gutiers, streets and
sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems are exciuded from general fixed assets since
such items are immovable and are of value only to the County.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
matenally extend asset lives are not included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group or
capitalized in the proprietary funds.

Fixed assets in the proprietary funds and applicable component units are stated at cost
Donated assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date donated interest on applicable
debt, net of interest earned on available funds, is capitalized during the period of construction, Major
additions or renovations are depreciated from the date they are ready for use; other acquisitions are
depreciated one-half year in the year of acauisition and one-half year in the year of disposition or
retirement. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated usefu! lives
of the assets, which are as follows:

Assef Service Lives
Buildings 4(} years
improvements other than
buildings 20 years
Equipment 4-20 years

Restricted Assets - Restricted assets consist of bond proceeds held by a State agency.
These funds are to be used for improvements to the County's sewer district and the solid waste
management authonty.

Deferred Revenues - Deferred revenues are those where asset recognition criteria have
been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The County has reported
as deferred revenues certain real property taxes, state aid. rehabilitation loans, tuition and other
tems in the respective funds. Such amounts have been deemed to be measurable but not
‘available” pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles.

Long-Term Obligations - The County records long-term debt of governmental funds at
face value in the General Long-Termn Debt Account Group. Certain other governmental fund
obligations not expected to be financed with current available financial resources are also reported
in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Long-term debt and other liabilities financed by
proprietary funds are reported as liabilities within those funds.
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Compensated Absences - The liability for compensated absences has been recorded in
the respective funds inasmuch as they will be funded from cutrent rescurces. The
expenditure/expense refated to vested vacation and sick pay in the operating funds was accrued
based upon pay rates currently in effect

Retained Earnings - Retained eamings represent the equity generated from the operations
of the proprietary funds.

Fund Balance - Reserves and Designations - Portions of fund balance are segregated for
future use and are therefore not available for future appropration or expenditure.  Amounis
reserved represent portions of fund balance which are required to be segregated in accordance with
State law or generally accepted accounting principles. Designation of urweserved fund balances in
governmental funds indicates the utilization of these rescurces in the ensuring years budge! or
tentative plans for future use. Undesignated fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance
which is available for budgeting in future periods.

5, Imterfund Transactions

Cuasit-extemal transactions are accounted for as revenues of expendifures/expenses
Transactions that constitute reimbursements 1o a fund for expenditurasfexpenses mutially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expendituresiexpenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. Al
other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported
as operating transfers. Non-recurring or non-routine permanent transfers of equity are reporied as
residual equity transfers. Al other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers.

H. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying
combined financial statements in order o provide an understanding of changes in the County's
financial position and operations. Certain reclassifications of prior year fimancial data have been
made to conform with the currert vear presentation.

L. Total Columns in General Purpose Financial Statements

Total columns in the general purpose financial staterments are captioned "Memorandum
Only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columng
do not present financial position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.  Neither is such data comparable o a consolidation.  Interfund
efiminations have not been made in the aggregation of this dala.
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J. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and Habilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements.  Estimates aiso affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/ expenses during the reporting period.  Actual resuits could differ from those
estimates.

Property Tax Limitation

The County is permitted by the State Constitution to levy for purposes other than debt service up to
1 1/2% of the five year average full valuafion of taxable real estate located within the County. In
accordance with this provision, the maximum amount of the levy for 1996 was $288,079,621 which
exceeded the actual levy by $2398 245754,

- Workers’ Compensation Benefits Fund Deficit
The Workers' Compensation Benefils Funé reflects a deficit of $1,196,577 as of December 31,
1096, This deficit is attributable to the accrual of claims including incurred but not reported claims which

will be satisfied in subsequent years. This defict will be eliminated by the adjustment of billings in future
periods,

Othear Fund Deficits

The County Road Fund had an undesignated deficit of 3367 796 at December 31, 1986, The
County will address this deficit in the ensuing year.

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds and Account Groups

A, Assels
Cash and Equivalents

The carrying amount of the primary government's deposits at December 31, 1896 was
$64 978 894, exclusive of petty and departmental cash of $18 580 and the bank balance was
$74,427.9687. Of the bank balance, $1,179.052 was covered by federal deposit insurance,
$35,301 988 was covered by collateral held by the County’s agent, a third party financial institution
in the County's name and $37 948 927 was covered by collateral held in the trust department of the
pledging financial institution n the County's name.
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The carrying amount, bank balances and coliateral of the component units were as follows:

Soil and Solid
tndustrial Water Waste
Community Development  Conservation  Management
Coliege Agency District Authorty
Carrying amount $ 8445189 % 27927 % 1,702 3 2,202,488
Bank balarce b 8626142 3 27,927 % 12459 & 2202813
Collaterat:
Amounts insured by FDIC % 403080 3 27827 % 12453 % 200,004
Coliateral held by the trust
depariment of the pledging
firancial inshiution in the
entity's name 8,223 082 . - -
Colateral heid by the entity's
agent, a third party financial
mstitution in the entity's
name - - - 2002813
$ 8626142 3 27,927 & 12458 & 2202813

Investments

investments of the primary government are stated at cost, which approximates market
value, and consist of US. Treasury Notes and certificates of deposit with maturities in excess of
three months. The details of the County's investment portfolic by fund as of December 31, 1996
were as follows:

Total Cost,

S Certificates which
Treasury of Aporoximates

Fund MNotes Peposit Market!
Sewer Fund b - % 10345000 § 10.345000
Debt Service Fund - 13,121 804 13,121,804
Capttal Projects Fund 3,000,000 7,844 393 10,844 393

Workers” Compensation

Benefits Fund - 5,570,000 5570000
General Liability Claims Fund - 6,900,000 8,800 000

i

2000000 3 43781197 § 46781197
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The US. Treasury Bills and US. Treasury Notes are insured or registered, and the
securities are held by the County’s agent, a third party financial institution, in the County's name. Of
the total certificates of deposit of $43,781,797, $25 414,039 was covered by collateral held by the
County's agent, a third party financial institution in the County's name and $18367 758 was
covered by coliateral held in the trust department of the pledging financial institution in the County's
name.

Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable at December 31, 1996 consisted of the following:

Tax sale cerificates % 23088528
Tax installments 5,105,879
Returned school district taxes 15 870,555
Returned viliage taxes 1,408,155
Property acquired for taxes 123488
45,386,589

Allowance for uncollectible taxes 3 3120003
$_42.084.589

School district and village taxes are offset by Habilities to the school districts and villages
which will be paid no later than April 1897 Taxes receivable are also partially offset by deferred fax
revenues of 320,800,327 which represents an estimate of the receivable which will not be collected
within the first sixty days of the subsequent vear.

Due From/To Other Funds

The balances reflected as due from/to other funds at December 31, 1886 were as follows:

Due Due
Fund Erom To
Frimary Government:
General Fund & - § 11483068
County Road Fund 247 728 .
Road Machinery Fund ‘ 382,207
Community Development Fund 100,134 -
Sewer District Fund - 146,035
Debt Service Fund 726,638 -
Capital Projects Fund ‘ - 473758
Home and infirmary Fund 3,024 555 -
Workers' Compensation Benefils
Fund - 109 384
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Due Due

Fung From To
General Liability Claims Fund $ 11048198 % -
Unemployment Benefils Fund 80.981 -
Health Benefits Fund 3,562,098 -
General Services Fund 2,966 224 -
Agency Funds - 3.241
12,225,486 12,225 488

Componernt Unit -

Community Coliege 522219 522.21%

§ 12747705 § 12747705

Operating Transfers

Operating transfers in and out by fund for the primary government and component unit for
the vear ended December 31, 1998 were as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out
Primary Component Primary Component
Fund Government Lnit Government Lini

General Fund $ 4678441 § - % 25307777 % 106887 800
County Road Fund 5,540,593 - 47 852 -
Road Machinery Fund 1,261,861 - 4,621 -
Community Development

Fund - - 18,702
Sewer District Fund 890,567 - 7388709 -
Debt Service Fund 18,547 934 - 5,378 6567 .
Capital Projects Fund 720,550 - 321613
Home and infirmary Fund 6,821,185 - - -
Community College Fund - 10,687,900 . -

$.. 38462241 5 10687900 § 38462241 § 10687 800
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General Fixed Assets

Changes in general fixed assets during 1996 were as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, Decernber 31,
Category 1996 Additions __Delgtions 1996

Land $ 7814618 § 4982 % - & 7819600

Buildings 39,855,408 663,086 - 40,518,492
improvements other than

buildings 328079242 8.892 797 - 336,972,039

Equipment 18,704, 149 4 610,548 2,050,281 22,264 416

Construction-in-progress 254,652, 841 - 2112922 252540019

$.650.106356 § 14171413 $ 4163203 $ 660.114.566

Fixed Assets - Enterprise Fund

Fixed assets of the Enterprise Fund at December 31, 1996 are comprised of the following:

Land $ 360,000
Buildings 16,221,805
Improvements other than buildings 345 975
Eguipment 24 941 467
Construction-in-progress 4.124.603
£ 45,993,950

Fixed Assets - internzal Service Fund

Fixed assets of the Internal Service Fund at December 31, 1996 are comprised of the

following:
Buildings % 2,580
Equipment ) 2.812.1640
§  2.815 149

Fixed Assets - Component Unit

The fixed assets of the Solid Waste Management Authority at December 31, 1996 are
comprised of the following:

Land 3 505,000
Construction-in-progress . 12.288.530
$_ 12793530
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Restricted Assets
FPrimary Government

The restricted assets of the primary government consist of investments m U.S. Treasury
Bills. the use of which s restricted to sewer improvemenis. These investments are collateralized by
the underiving securilies.

Component Unit

The restricted assets of the component unit consist of cash and equivalents, the use of
which is restricted to construction of solid waste disposal projects.  These amounts are
collateralized by the Trustee holding the funds.

B. Liabilities
Unpaid Claim Liabilities

The Internal Service Funds reflect workers' compensation benefit liabilities, general kability
claims, unemployment benefit abilities and health benefit liabilities which are based upon estimates
of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported,
but not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR's). The length of time
for which such costs must be estimated vanes depending on the coverage involved. Because
actual claim costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liabifity
and damage awards, the process used in computing claims Habilities does not necessarily result in
an exact amount. Claim liabilittes are recomputed pericdically using a vanety of actuanal and
statisticat techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent setflements, claim frequency
and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the caloulation of estimated future
claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data
that reflects past inflation and other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past
EXDETENCE.

An analysis of the activity of unpaid claim liabiliies is as follows:

Workers' General
Compensation Liability Unemployment Heaith

Fiscal 1396 Benefils Claims Benefils Benefils
Unpaid clarns - Beginnmg

of Year $ 6044582 § 6520141 3 B84 854 % 4827539
incurred claims including

IBNR's 2420278 55255 235,522 24 420437
Claims paid . (1.886014) (2.385.200) (278.703) (22,891 458)
Unpadclaims - Endof Year §_ 5568846 & 4180186 3 41673 $_ 6356513
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Workers' General
Compensation Liability Unemployment Health

Fiscal 1985 Benefits Claims Benefiis Benefiis
Unpaid claims - Beginning

of Year $ 6278513 F 6321600 % 70,100 & 4950015
Incurred claims including

IBNR's 2,682,218 1.079.010 296,833 23,625 508
Claims paid {2.817.147) (880489 (282079 (23757 881}
Unpaid claims - EndofYear & 6044582 3 6520141 § B4854 5 4827535

indebtedness
Revenue Anticipation Note Payable

The County, during 1996, issued $15 million in notes in anticipation of State aid. The notes
are due in May 1987 with interest at 4 25%.

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable

The following bond anticipation notes were cutstanding at December 31, 1696

Year of
Onginal Rate of Armnount
Purpose [ssue interest - Qutstanding
Capital Projects Fund: .
Yarious Public Improvements 1988 3 60%: & 7200000
Various Public Improvements 18996 4 00 31581
18,791,000
Erterprise Fund -
Various Public Improvements 1896 400 1.235.000
$__ 20026000

Liabilities for bond anticipation noles are generally accounted for i the Capital Projects
Fund or, in the case of enterprise fund projects, within the fund. Bond anticipation notes issued for
judgments or settled claims are recorded in the fund paying the claim. Prncipal payments on bond
anticipation notes must be made annually. State law requires that bond anticipation notes issued
for capital purposes or judgments be converted to long-term obligations within generally five years
after the onginal issue date. However, bond anticipation notes issued for assessable improvement
projects may be renewed for periods equivalent to the maximum life of the perrmanent financing,
provided that stipulated annual reductions of principal are made.
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Long-Term Indebtedness

The changes i the County's long-term indebtedness dunng the vear ended December 31,
1996 are summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1968 Additions Reduyctions 1986
Serial Bonds:
Governmental Funds $ 128712882 § 6365000 $ 11852437 (1) § 123225445
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Fund 14038328 - 1,838 441 (1) 12,088,885
irternat Service Fund 4,292 530,448 (1) 41,570 493 170
Total Serial Bonds 142,755 500 5,895,448 13,832,448 135 818,500
Due to Retirement Systerm:
Governmental Funds 2561 215 501,075 1,623,885 1,438 4085
Proprietary Funds 2,009.595 276,710 497 660 1,788,745
4570810 777,785 2.121.545 3,227,159
Totals $ 147326410 $ 7673233 § 15953983 $ 138045650

{1 Serial bond additions for the infernal Service Fund represent the reclassification from the
General Long-Term Account Group of $246,597 and Enterprise Fund of $283,851. This
amount represents the outstanding bonded debt of $530,448 upon formation of the General
Services Fund.

Honds Pavable
Bonds payable at December 31, 1996 are comprised of the following individual issues:

15 470,000 - 1973 bonds for sewer district improvements, due in
annual instaliments of $540,000 through Apri 1899, $550.000
through April 2004 and 3415 000 in April 2005, interest at 5.50% for
maturities through 2001 and 4.50% for maturifies through 2005 3 4,785 600

37,220,000 - 1975 bonds for Rockiand Community Coliege, due m
annual nstallments of $375,000 through Apni 1988. interest af
5 80% 750,0C0

$13,225000 - 1976 bonds for wvaripus purposes including
improvements to the health complex, County office building, fire
training center and County iail, due in annual instaliments of
$575.000 through June 1898 and 3$50.000 through June 2000,

interest at 5.50% 1,250,000
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$5,356,000 - 1984 bonds for various purposes including
improvemenris to health complex, bridges, drainage and Rockiand
Community College, due in annual instaliments of $575,000 through
May 1898 interest at 7. 60%

$11,180.000 - 1684 bonds for sewer disirict improvements, due in
annual instaliments of $450,000 through May 2008 and $395.000 in
May 2009 interest at 9.375% for maturities through 2002, 8.40%
for maturities through 2005 and 9.50% for maturities through 2008

$5,108.150 - 1984 bonds for various purposes including
improvements to Rockland Commurity College, health compiex,
vanous builldings and highway and drainage projects, due in annuat
instaliments of $275,000 through May 1998 and $250.000 in May
1899, interest at 8 75% for matunties through 1989

$11.923 000 - 1985 bonds for public improvement purposes
including improvements to the Sheriff's building, the County jail and
the health complex, due in annual instaliments of $750.000 in
September 1897, 3700,000 through September 2000 and $650.000
in September 2001; interest at 7. 875% for maturities through 1998
and B.00% for matunties through 2001

$9,520,000 - 1986 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $380,000 through June 2001, 3400000 through
June 2006, $420,000 through June 2010 and $425,000 in June
2011 interest at 7 40% and 7.50% depending upon maturity

$12.526.248 - 1886 bonds for public improvements including the
health complex, due in annual instaliments of $555 000 through
April 1998, $585 000 through April 2000 and $575 000 through April
20027, interest at 7.00% and 7.10% depending upon matunty

$10,000,000 - 1986 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
mstaliments of $400,000 through Apnl 2001, $425,000 through April
2004, $450,000 through Apni 2008 and $475.000 through April
2011, interest at 7.00% and 7.10% depending upon maturity

$9.658.000 - 1987 bonds for public improvements including the
health complex, due m annual instaliments of $750,000 in
September 1897, $3450,000 through September 2001 and $375,000
in Septermber 2007 interest at 6.75% for maturities in 1997, 6.50%
for maturities in 1998 and 7.00% for maturities through 2002
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310,546 000 - 1988 ponds for public improvements including the
heaith compiex, due in annual instaliments of $660,000 through
October 1998, $625 000 through October 2002 and $525,000 in
October 2003; interest at 6.80% for matunties through 1889,
5 875% for maturities through 2001 and 6.90% for maturities
through 2003

$11,785,000 - 1989 bonds for public improvements including the
health complex, due in annual instaliments of $575.000 through
February 1999, $475000 through February 2001, 3450000
through February 2004, $250,000 in February 2005 and 3225000
through February 2009, interest at 6.6% for maturnities through 2009

$20.284 115 - 1980 bonds for refunding of sewer improvement
bonds, due i annual nstaliments of $838,000 in March 1997,
3960000 in March 1988, $981,500 in March 1989, $1,005000 in
March 2000, $1,026.000 in March 2001, $1,047 000 in March 2002,
$1.069.000 in March 2003, $1,090,000 in March 2004, $1,111,000
in March 2005, $1,134,000 in March 20086, $1,155,000 in March
2007, $1,174.00C in March 2008, $1,.198,000 in March 2009 and
$1.213,000 in March 2010, interest at rates ranging from 590% to
7. 50%, depending on maturity

$5.850.000 - 1982 bonds for various purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $945 000 in Oclober 1897, $700.000 in October
1998, $685,000 through October 2002, $450,000 in October 2003,
$435,00C in October 2004, 3430000 in October 2005, $425.000
through October 2007, $135.000 n Qctober 2008, $110,000 in
October 2008 and $115,000 through October 2012; interest af rates
ranging from 5.20% to 5.50%, depending on maturity

$2.905,000 - 1992 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $130,000 through September 1998, $135000C
through Septerber 2000, $140.000 in September 2001, $145.000
through Sentember 2003, $150 000 in September 2004, $155.000
through September 2008, $160.000 through Septermber 2008,
$165.000 in September 2008, $170.000 through September 2011
and $175,000 in September 2012; interest at 5.46%

$8 125.000 - 1892 bonds to satisfy pension liability, due in annual
instalimernts of $575.000 in December 19387, 3800,000 in December
1998, $725 000 in December 1998, $750.000 in December 2000
and $775,000 through Decermber 2005, interest at rates ranging
from 7.20% to 7.25%. depending on maturity
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$5,855 000 - 19892 bonds for sewer purpeses, due in annual
instaliments of $260.000 in September 1997, $265 000 in
September 1998, $270,000 in September 1999, $280,000 through
September 2001, $290.000 in September 2002, $295.000 in
September 2003, $300,000 in September 2004, $310.000 in
September 2005, $315,000 in Septermber 2006. $320.000 in
September 2007, $325000 in September 2008 $330.000 in
September 2009, $340,000 in September 2010, $345 000 in
September 2011 and $350,000 in September 2012 interest at rates
ranging from 3.00% to 6.65%, depending on maturity

$11.310,000 - 1993 bonds for refunding of sewer and various
purpose bonds, due in annual instaliments of $920 000 in March
18997, $870,000 in March 1998, $660.000 in March 1899, $520.000
through March 2002, $605,000 through March 2005, $600.000 in
March 2006, $240,000 in March 2007, $235,000 in March 2008 and
$240,000 through March 2017 interest at rates ranging from 3.0%
to 5.375%, depending upon maturity

$4 350,000 - 1993 bonds for sewer purposes, due m annual
mstaliments of $180,000 through September 1098, $185 000 in
September 1899, $200.000 in September 2000, 3205000 n
September 2001, 3210000 in September 2002, $215.000 in
September 2003, $220.000 in Sentember 2004, 3225000 in
September 2005, $230,000 in September 20086, $235000 in
September 2007, $240.000 in September 2008, $245,000 through
September 2010, $250,000 in September 2011, $255.000 in
September 2012 and $260,000 in September 2013 interest at rates
ranging from 2 55% to 5.6%, depending upon maturity

52,675,000 - 1993 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $115000 in November 1997, $120.000 through
November 1998, $125000 through November 2001 $130,000
through November 2003, $135,000 in November 2004, $140.000
through November 2008, $145.000 through November 2008,
$150.000 through November 2010, $155.000 in November 2011
and $160,000 through November 2013; interest at rates ranging
from 2.65% to 5.20%, depending upon matunty

$11,248 000 - 1984 bonds for public improvements mcluding the
health complex, due in annual instaliments of $850.000 in Aprii
1997, $875.000 through April 2001, $650.000 in Aprl 2002,
$600,000 through Aprit 2008, $575,000 in April 2006 $400.000 in
Aprit 2007, $385,000 in April 2008, $370.000 in April 2009,
$240.000 in Aprit 2010 and $235.000 in April 2011 interest at rates
ranging from 5.20% to 5 80%, depending upon maturity
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$12.347,000 - 1994 bonds for public improvements including the

heaith complex, due m annual instailments of 3$1.567.000 in
November 1887, $1.680.000 in November 1988 31780000 m
November 1898 $470.000 in November 2000, $480000 mn
November 2001, $505000 in November 2002, 3525000
November 2003, $830.000 in November 2004, $325000 in
November 2005, $320,000 in November 2008, $350,080 through
Neovember 2008, $355.000 in November 2008 and 3140 000
through November 2014 interest at rates ranging from 5.80% to
5.00%, depending upon maturity

$12.546.000 - 1995 bonds for various purposes, dug in annual
instaliments of $895,000 in August 1997, 31045000 in Augusi
1988, $1.100.000 in August 1992, $1,155000 in August 2000,
$1,210.000 in August 2001, $1.275 0006 in August 2002, $1.335,000
in August 2003, $1,405,000 in August 2004, $1 475,000 in August
2005 and $1.550.000 in August 2006, interest at rates ranging from
4.00% to 8.00%, depending upon maturity

%5, 365000 - 1896 bonds for sewer purposes due o annual
instattments of $230.000 in December 1987, $245 000 in December
1998, 3255000 through December 2000, 5260 000 in December
2001, $265,000 in December 2002, $270.000 in December 2003,
3275080 in December 2004, 3285000 in December 2005,
$295.00C in December 2008, $300,600 through December 2608,
$315.000 in December 2009 $320000 in December 2010,
$330.000 in December 2011, $340000 in December 2012
$355000 in December 2013, 3$380.000 in December 2014,
$370.000 0 December 2015, $380.000 in December 2016 and
$380,000 in December 2017 interest at rates ranging from 4.625%
to 5.2%, depending on maturity
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The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of December 31, 1998
including interest payments of $47 131,743 are as follows:

Year Governmental Proprigtary
_ . End Funds Funds Total

1997 19,413,381 2582387 $ 22005788
1998 18,2897 238 2,429 689 20,726,827
1999 16,832,814 1,884 968 18,517,782
2000 14 517 811 1,707,504 16,225 415
2001 14,073,278 1,555,311 15,628,589
2002-2006 52,318,965 5,306,874 57625938
2007-201+ 25,469 424 §77 549 26,146,873
2012-2016 5,311,876 143,700 5,455,576
2017 617,254 - 617.254
166,652,151 $ 16208092 $ 182950243

The above general obligation bonds are direct obligations of the County for which s full
faith and credit are pledged and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable real property within the
County. The "Amount to be Provided for General Long-Term Debt” represents the amount
exclusive of interest, authorized fo be collected in future vears from tax;}ayers and others for
hauidation of long-term labilities.

Component Units
Community College

The Office of the State Comptroller of the State of New York ("State Comptrofier”)
conducted two separate audits relating to tuition assistance payments made to the College's Judaic
studies Frogram. One concerned the students in the Israel Program and the other related to the
College’'s New Square operation. The audits covered the years 1983 through 1988 and
recommended that the Higher Education Services seek to recover $4,772 986 from the College.

During December 1883, the College entered into a settiement with New York State whersby
the College will repay New York State $2.2 miliion in Tuition Assistance Payments in lieu of the
disallowances claimed. The repayment is being made in five equal annual instaliments of $440,000
without interest.  The College has imputed interest at 4% and has recorded the minimum future
discounted amount of $829.881 as of August 31, 1898  The annual payment will be funded
through the reduction of future tuition assistance payments to the College.

Solid Waste Management Authority
The Solid Waste Management Authority received a loan from the County, which at

December 31, 1996, has an outstanding balance of 31565000 The loan is due in annual
nstaliments and bears interest at the rate of 5 90%.
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Sohd Waste Management Authonty bonds payable at December 31, consisted of the
following issues:

1956 1885

$22 9368 600 - 1996 serial bonds, due in annusl
nstaliments of $781.600 in 1997, $850,000 in 1988
$860.000 i 19099, $875.000 in 2000, $895 000 in
2001, $510000 m 2002, $930000 in 2003,
FO50 000 in 2004, $870.000 in 2005 %$995.000 in
2006, $1.020.000 in 2007, $1.045000 in 2008
E1.075000 m 2008, 31105000 in 2010, $1,138.000
i 2011, $1. 165000 in 2012, $1.200000 in 2013,
31235000 in 2014, 31270000 in 2015 and
3670000 in 2018, interest at stated rates between
3.35% to 5.2%. depending upon maturity $ 22G36800 3 -

$11,620.000 - 1956 serial bonds net of unamortized
discount of $223.666. due in annual instaliments of
3445 000 in 2000, 3465000 in 2001, $485000 in
2002, 8510.000 in 2003, $835.000 i 2004,
$560,000 in 2005, $580.000 in 2008, 36820000 n
2007, $855000 i 2008 3680.000 in 2008,
$730.000 m 2010, 3770000 in 2011, 3815000 in
2012, 3860000 mn 2013, $910.000 in 2014,
$965 000 in 2015 and $1.015.000 in 2016, interest
at stated rates between 4.6% to 5 58%, depending
Lpon maturity 11,396,334 -

34,332 934 -
Less Curent Maturities 176.580 -

$ 33562354 5 -

At the oplion of the Authority, the senal bonds included in the 322,836 600 issue will be
subject to redemption prior to maturity on or after June 15, 2006, These bonds may be redeemed
either as a whole at any time or in part on any interest payment date on or after June 15, 2006 at
the following redemption prices plus accrued interest, if any, to the date of redemption.

Redamption Period Redemption Price
(Dates Inclusive) {as a % of Par}
June 15 2006 to June 14, 2007 102 %
June 15 2007 io Jurne 14, 2008 101 %
June 15 2008 and thereafter 100 %
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At the option of the Authority, the serial bonds included in the $11,6820,000 issue will be
subject to redemption prior fo maturity on or after December 15, 2006. These bonds may be
redeemed either as a whoie or in part at any time at the following redemption prices plus accrued
interest, if any, to the date of redemption.

Redemption Period Redemption Price
(Dates Inclusive) . {asa % of Par
December 15, 20086 to December 14, 2007 102%
December 15, 2007 to December 14, 2008 101%
December 15, 2008 and thereafier 100%

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt of the component units, including
interest of $50, 119 for the College and $22 407 381 for the Solid Waste Management Authorily are

as follows:
College agement Authonty
Principal Interest Total __ Principal interest Total
19497 % 406 805 % 33,185 % 440000 % 1,156,600 3 1,764 825 % 2921425
19498 423 076 154024 440 000 1,250,600 1,716,516 2,868 516
1998 - - - 1,300,000 - 1662741 2,862 741
2000 - - - 1,320,000 1,604,531 2.924 531
2001 - - . 1,360,000 1,548 836 2,808 836
2002-2006 - - - 7,435 000 8821672 14 256 872
2007-2011 - - - 8 B45 000 4,901 558 13,748 558
2012-2016 - - - 13,105,000 2,385,602 15480602

3 829881 3 20119 $ 880000 § 35771600 § 22407381 $58178 981

Frior Year Defeasance of Debt

in prior years, the County defeased sewer improvement bonds by placing the proceeds of
new bonds in an irevocable trust to provide for ali future debt service paymenis on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
County’s financial statements. At December 31, 1996, 322,650,000 of bonds outstanding are
considered defeased.

Pansion Plans

The primary government and ceriain component units participate in the New York State and
Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS)  The System, during 1885, elected early
implementation of GASB Statement No. 25 and no longer will calculate or be able to fumish
rformation required by GASB Statement No. 5 Consequently, the County and certain component
units have elected early implementation of the provisions of GASB Statement No. 27. The System
15 a cost-sharing multipte-employer defined benefit pension plans. The System provides retirement,
disability and death benefits to plan memb&i% Otligations of employers and employees ©
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ups {Continued)

contribute and benefits o emplovees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law.  The Systern issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained
by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement Systemn, Governor Alfred E. Smith State
Office Building, Albany, New York 12224

Funding Policy - The System is non-contributory except for employees who joined after July
27, 1978, who contribute 3% of their salary, Contributions are certified by the State Comptroller
and expressed as a percentage of members’ salary. Coniribution rates are actuarially determined
and based upon membaership tier and plan. Contributions consist of a life insurance portion (GTLD
and reguiar pension contributions. Confribution rates for the plan year ended March 31, 1997 are
as follows:

Tier/Plan GTL Regular
1 751 4% 3.2%
1 BGA Vi 4.0
1 BEB.M 3 4.8
1 88D 3 46
2 751 A4 2.8
2 894 4 36
2 BOB M 4 38
2 B8N 4 11.6
3 Al4 4 2.1
4 At5 4 2.1

Contributions made 1o the System for the current and two preceding vears were as follows:

Component Units

Soil and
Water Industrial
Primary Conservation  Development
Government . College District Agency
1986 $ 2892581 % 221701 % 2320 % 1.100
19985 1,487 405 301,581 1,538 1.976
1994 238 888 25,064 166 1.245

These contributions were equal to the actuanally required amounts,

The current ERS contribution for the primary govermnment was charged to the funds
ientified below.

o Amount
Governmental Funds $ 17128089
Proprietary Funds 979,782
$ 20929891
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The primary government and the college component unit, in 1991, slected to participate in
the early retirement incentive program enacted by the New York State Legisiature. The program
provided that eligible employees electing early retirement would receive up to thirty six months of
service credit added to their pension benefit depending upon tength of service. The cost of the
program was approximately eighty percent of the average of the employees' three highest
consecutive years' wages. The aggregate cost for the program was $3,767,249. The payment
terms provide for repayment over a five vear period with interest  The current vear cost of the
incentive program was $884.834.  Of this amount, $516,048 was charged to the governmental
funds of the primary government, $42.309 was charged to the proprietary funds and $59,090 was
charged to the Community College for the College’'s 1996-97 fiscal year. The Home and infirmary
cost of $300,695 was accrued in prior years. This liability was satisfied during 1996,

Chapter 12 of the Laws of 1995 authorized local governments to offer emplovees & new
retirement incentive program. The aggregate cost for the program was $2,579.462. The payment
terms provide for repayment over a five year period pius interest. The remaining fiability for this
program is $2,111, 332. Of this amount, $837,328 is applicable to govermnmental funds of the
primary government and has been recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group since it
wili be redeemed from future resources. The balance of $1,174,004 is applicable to the Proprietary
Funds and the College and has been reflected as a liability in those funds.

Chapter 12 of the Laws of 1996 authorized local governments to offer emplioyees a new
retirement incentive program. The estimated cost of this program is $1.011.657 for the primary
government. Beginning in 1997, payments will be made over a five year period with interest at
8.75%. The primary government's portion applicable to the governmental funds of $501.077 has
been recorded in the General Long-Term Account since it will be redeemed from future resources.
Of the balance, $380,000 is applicable to the Home and Infirmary and $121,580 is applicable to the
internal Service Funds. These amounts have been reflecied as a liability in those funds.

Chapter 437 of the Laws of 1993 added Article 18 to the New York State Retirement and
Social Security Law.  Article 18 authorizes the granting of retroactive transfer, retroactive
membership and credit for previous service in certain situations. It contains three sections, each
providing relief under different circumstances. Under Section 803, members may file application for
retroactive membership before October 14, 1996, which may entitfe members to an earlier date of
membership.  If it 15 determined that members are eligible for retroactive membership, the
employer, at the time members were first eligible for membership, must pay the emplover's share of
the retirement cost. The primary government and its college component unit, during the 1996 fiscal
year, were notified of and satisfied liabilities aggregating $248 287 for Article 18 costs. This amount
was charged as follows:

Amoynt
Primary Government,
Governmental Funds 3 136,084
Froprietary Funds 66,781
Componernt Unit -
Community College 45427
3 248 287
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The Solid Waste Management Authority does not incur eligible salaries and therefore does
not participate in a New York State pension program.

Community College Pension Program

The College participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
(ERS). the Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan, the New York State Teachers’ Retirement
System (TRS) and the Teachers’ Insurance and Annuity Association - College Retirement Equities
Fund (TIAA-CREF). The ERS and Public Employees’ Group Life insurance Plans are the same
systerns which cover County employees. The elements of this system are described above. TRS is
a cost-sharing muliiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. The System, during 1895, elected
early implementation of GASB Statement No. 25 and no fonger will calculate or be able to furmish
information required by GASB Statement No. 5. Consequently, the College has elected early
implementation of the provisions of GASB Statement No, 27. TRS provides retirement, disability
and death benefits to olan members. Obligations of employers and employees 1o condribute and
benefits to employees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law.
The System issues a pubiicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the System. The TRS report may be obtained by wriing to
the New York State Teachers' Retirement Systern, 10 Corporate Woods Drive, Albany, NY 12211-

2395,

Funding Policy - TRS is non-contnibutory except for employees who joined the System after
July 27, 1976, who contribute 3% of their salary. Pursuant to Article 11 of Education Law.
contributions are established annually for TRS by the New York State Teachers' Retirement Board.
Contribution rates are actuarially determined and based upon membership ter and plan
Contributions consist of a regular pension contribution.  Contribution rates for the plan year ended
June 30, 15986 are as follows:

Tiers Regular

1-4 8.37%

Contributions made to the System for the current and two preceding years were as follows!

TRS
1996 $ 107,780
1995 187 673
1984 162,204

These contributions were equal to the actuanally required amounts.

TIAA/CREF is an optional retirement program, designated by the trustees of the State
University of New York, which has been made available by the College fo eligible employees. This
System is a privately operated defined contribution retirement plan. The Coliege assumes no
liability for the financial status of TIAA/JCREF members’ accounts other than payment of
contributions.  Particination eligibiiity as well as contributory and non-contributory requirements are
established by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law. Benefits are determined
by the amount of ndividual accumulations and the retirerment income option selected.
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All benefits are fully vested after thirleen months of participation in TIAA/CREF. New York
State Education Law establishes the contribution rate for each employee electing this oplional
refirernent program. TIAA/CREF is non-condributory except for employees who joined after July 1,
1976 who confribute 3% of their salary. TIAA/CREF allows members io make extra payments at
any time. These extra payments are not matched by the College. I is the policy of the College to
fund pension costs as incurred.  For the plan year ended August 31, 1998, the College incurred
%1,148 563 in pension expense under this Plan.

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of existing collective bargaining agreements, certain empioyees of the
primary government may accumulate sick leave. Upon separation of service, employees,
depending on the criteria defined in the contract, are compensated for accumulated leave in excess
of 185 days, up to a maximum of 35 days. The primary government is also obligated to pay
employees accrued vacation pay up to a maximum of 77 days, depending upon the contract. The
expenditure/expense related to such vested accumulated vacation leave was accrued n the
operating funds based upon pay rates currently in effect. The vested accumulated sick leave was
deermed immateral.

Linder the terms of existing collective bargaining agreements, the College is not obligated to
pay accumulated sick leave to emplovees upon separation of service. The College is. however,
obligated to pay employees’ accrued vacation up to an established limit. At August 31, 1896, the
expense related to vested vacation pay for employees was accrued based upon pay rates currently
in effect. Accrued vacation pay aggregated approximately $1,030,000 and was inciuded in accrued
habilities.

The employees of the Industrial Development Agency and the Soil and Water Conservation
District may accumulate vacation leave.  Upon separation of service, these employees are
compensated up to a maximum of 50 days. The liability for the industrial Development Agency was
deemed mmaterial. The Soil and Water Conservation District had no liability at December 31,
1996

The Solid Waste Management Authority has no full-time employees and therefore does not
require a compensated absence policy.

Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

in addition to providing pension benefils, the primary government and ds College
component unit provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. The various collective
bargaining agreements stipulate the employees covered and the percenfage of contnbution
Contributions by the primary government and its College component unit may vary according to
length of service. Substantially all employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach
normal retirement age while working for these entities. The cost of retiree health care benefits is
recognized as an expenditure as claims are paid  Expendituresiexpenses for the pnmary
government in 1996 aggregated $7 087 847 and were paid on behalf of 1260 retirees
Expenditures for the College aggregated approximately $1,113,000 for 187 retirees for the year
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ended August 31, 1886. The Soil and Water Conservation District, Industriat Development Agency
and the Solid Waste Management Authority did not incur expenditures/expenses for retiree health
benefis,

Deferred Compensation Flan

The County offers its emplovees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
internal Revenue Code Section 457 The plan, available to all County empioyees, permits them to
defer a portion of their salary until future years, Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the pian, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are
(until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of
the County {(without being restricted fo provisions of benefits under the plan) subject only fo the
claims of the County's general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to those of
general creditors of the County in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account
for each participant.

it is the opinion of the County's management that the County has no liabiity for losses under
the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor.
The County believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general
creditors i the future.

investments are managed by the plan's trustee under several investment options.  The
choice of the investment option s made by the participants. The carrying amount and market value
as of Decermnber 31, 1996 was $51,738,854.

. Fund Balances
Reserved

Encumbrances outstanding have been reserved as it 1s the County's intention to honor the
contracts in process at year-end  The subsequent year's appropriations will be amended {o provide
authority to complete the transactions.

The Reserve for Prepaid Expenditures has been established to account for retirement
sayments made in advance. The reserve indicates that these funds are not "available” for
appropriation or expenditure even though they are a component of current assets.

The Reserve for Law Enforcement represents the unexpended balance of the forferture of
seized crime properties. These amounts must be used n the subsequent fiscal year for iaw
enforcement purposes as prescribed by the State of New York.

The Reserve for Stop - DW!I Program represents State revenues that must be used in

accordance with the parameters of the Driving While Intoxicated Program. The uses are prescribed
by State Law.
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The Reserve for Long-Term Receivable represents funds set aside to indicate the long-term
nature of a court ordered deposit. These funds are not "available” for appropriation or expenditure
even though they are a component of current assets.

The Reserve for Social Service Programs are funds set aside in the Trust and Agency Fund
for certain New York State operated social service programs.

The Reserve for Debt Service are funds that were derived from the investment of debt
proceeds {o be used specifically for debt redemption. The County's intended use of these funds, as
well as State law, requires that these funds be used only for redemption of debt in future periods.

The Reserve for Student Loans are funds provided to account for resources available for
foans to students.

The Reserve for Parklands has been established pursuant to New York State Law. These
amounts represent funds received by the County to be used for parkland improvements.

Uinreserved

Designations of funds balance are not legally required ségregations but represent intended
use for a specific purpose. The following reflect the County’s designations at December 31, 1998

Designated for Affordable Housing - This designation established by the County Legislature
s used o segregate a portion of fund balance to be utilized for the purpose of creating an
affordable housing program ir the County.

Designation for Section 8 - This designation of fund balance represents surplus monies from
the Section 8 program which is to be used to fund certain program costs.

Desginated for Transportation Projects - This designation of fund balance represents
surplus monies received for transportation projects which are to be used to fund transportation
capital project costs.

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - General and Special Revenue Funds - At

December 31, 1996, the County Legislature has designated that $1,500,000 of the fund balance of
the General Fund and $1,324,038 of the fund balance of the Sewer District Fund be used in 1057
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Litigation

The County receives numerous notices of claims for darnages occurring generally from alleged
negligence and civil rights viclations. The filing of such notice of claim commences a statutory period for
initiating judicial action. The County Attorney has indicated that he s not aware of any such action which
would have a significant adverse impact on the County's financial condition, except as described below.

The County is defendant in numercus pending tax certiorari proceedings, the results of which
cannot be determined at this time. Any future refunds resulting from adverse settiements will be funded in
the year payrnents are made.

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) conducted audits of costs ncurred by
the Sewer District for which the District sought funding under the EPA Wastewater Treatment Construction
Grants. In June 1990, Region H of the EPA issued determinations on the audits of several grants. The
sudit determinations declared that a total of approximately $1.3 million in expenditures were "unallowable”
for grant funding and sought the return of approximately $250,000 in previously paid grant funds. In July
1090, the Sewer District appealed these determinations. In lefters dated April 19, 1996 and May 3, 1996,
Region il determined to accept approximately $600,000 in funds previcusly found unallowable under one of
the grants. Counsel! has indicated that they anticipate the EPA will issue determinations on the appeals of
the other grants during 1997

in March 1992, Region Il of the EPA aiso issued a determination that approximately $1.2 mitlion of
expenditures of a specific grant was unaliowable for grant funding. In February 1993, the New York State
Department of Environmental Conservation on behalf of the EPA, issued its determination of final allowable
costs of another grant, ruling that a total of approximatety $7 million was unallowable for grant funding. In
September 1996, Region |i issued its determination on costs of another grant that approximately $3.1
million was unaliowable for grant funding. The Sewer District has appealed these determinations and s in
the process of preparing additional submissions in support of these appeals. It has been indicated that
there will be no decision regarding this appeal until the latter part of 1997

Risk Management
Liability Claims

The County is currently seff-insured for general liability claims.  Conventional insurance is not
purchased for catastrophic losses.

Workers' Compensation

Tne County and certain towns and villages within the County are participants in a County-wide
workers' compensation program. Premiums are assessed on each participant based upon a formula
involving payroll and the actual historical claims experience of such participant.  Costs relating to the
iitigation of claims are charged to expenditures as incurred. The County has secured conventional
insurance coverage for individual losses in excess of $500.000. Settled claims from these risks have not
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three years.
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Hegaith Benefits

The County s self-insured for health benefits for their employees. A plan administrator has been
retained to review and approve all claims. The County has purchased a stop loss policy to limit the
exposure to an annually agreed upon amount. Seftled claims from these risks have not exceeded
commercial coverage in any of the past three years.

Unemployment Benefits

The County is self-insured for claims arising from unemployment benefit cases.
Contingencies

The primary government and the College participate in various Federal grant programs. Thess
programs are subject to program compliance audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984, This audit is
currently in process and the report will be issued under separate cover. Accordingly, the primary
government and the College's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at a
future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannct be
determined at this time, although the entities anticipate such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

e 5 . .‘ ‘_

Complete financial statements of the individual component umits can be obtained from their
respactive administrative offices.

Administrative Offices:

Rockland Community College
145 College Road
Suffern, New York 10801

Rockland County Industrial Development Agency
COne Blue Hill Piaza
Peart River, New York 100965

Rockiand County Soit and Water Conservation District
23 New Hempstead Road
New City, New York 10858

Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority

4 Route 340
CGrangeburg, New York 10962
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The information presenied below represents condensed financial data of each component unit,

Balance Sheet

Assels:

Cash and equivalents
Other currert assels

Fixed asssts
Resiricted assels

Total Assels

Liabilities:

Current liabilities
Due to primary
gavernment
Bonds pavable

Total Liabiities
Equity:
Retained earmings
Reserves
Fund balances

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and

and Equity

Soit and Solid
industrial Water Waste
Community Development  Conservation  Management
College Agency Dhstrict Authority Total

B 445 188 3 27927 % 1,702 & 2202488 & 10677308
1,552,405 - - 197 317 1749722
- - . 12.793,530 12,783,530
- - - 24.781.155 24 781 155
3.997 5494 § 27827 3 1,702 3 36974490 & 50001713
0447 0GB 3 - & - 5 2082623 % 11508721
- - - 1,215 000 1.215.000
- - - 34 332 934 34 3372934
9,447 058 - - 37.610.857 47.057 6855
- - - 2. 383,833 2.363.833
137778 - - - 137.778
412.718 21927 1.702 - 442 347
550,496 27927 1.702 2.363.933 2.544 058
9897 5494 % 27927 & 1702 & 39874480 § 50001713

The industrial Development Agency and the Solid Waste Management Authority are reflected as

agnterprise funds.

The component unit column of the combined statement of cash flows reflects the

activities of these entities. Cash and eguivaients at December 31 1996 for these two entities were

$2,230.415
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Concluded)
DECEMBER 31, 1990

Solid
industrial Waste
Development Management
Agency Auythiority Total
Operating Revenues Y 2.500 & 2.2ngamm
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and wage expenses 11,060 - 11,000
Pension and employee benefits 2438 - 2438
Supplies and other expenses 4455 1.601.976 1,608,431
Total Operating Expenses 17.893 1.601.976 1,619,869
Operating Income (Loss) {15,383 664,912 649 519
Non-Operating Revenues, net 807 503,687 504 494
Net Income (Loss) (14 586} 1,168,588 1,184 013
Retained Eamings -
Beginning of Year 42,513 1,195.334 1.237.847
Retained BEarmings -
End of Year 3 27,927 §_ 2363933 §  2.381860
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GENERAL
FUND

The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of
the County in that it includes all revenues and expenditures
not required by law to be accounted for in other funds.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETY
DECEMBER 31 1986 AND 1995

AGSETS

Cash and Equivalents:
Demand deposits
Certificates of deposit
Fetty cash
Departmentat cash

Investments

Taxes Recewvable:
Tax sale certificates
Tax instaliments
Returned schoo! and vilage taxes
Property acquired for taxes

Allowance for uncollectible taxes

Other Receivables
Accounts
State and federal aid
Due from other govemments

Alowancs for uncollectible amounts

Hrepaid Expendiures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

{iahiities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabiities
Due to other governments
Due to schoot districts
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues - Taxes
Deferred revenues - Other
Revenue anticipation note payable

Totat Liabiliies

Fund Batance

Reserved for encumbrances

Reserved for prenad expenditures

Reserved for law enforcement

Reserved for Stop - DWW Program

Unreserved
Designated for Section 8
Designated for subsequernt years expendiures
Undesignated

Tetsl Fund Balance

Total Lisbidities and Fund Balance

Jees 1885
T 5446007 $ 1219544
8,000,000 7 B50.000
3.000 3.000
12580 12780
13481567 9085334
- 9,500,000

23.088 528 30,399,022
5,105 879 3,136,880
17.078.714 15 466 865
173 458 123 468
45,396,589 49 126 235
(3.312.000) (3,560.000}
42084589 45626235
11,203,083 12,269 295
43630391 41,136,797
5315103 3218238
51,148 577 56,624,327
(442.196) (442 1986)
80,706,387 3t
343,185 270,337

$.118.595 762

$ 120,664,037

$ 0493192 § 10.762.524
21,184 249 22.836.112
1.751.307 1626947
16,684,173 15,746 879
11,493 058 6.044.090
20,800,327 28,808,891

700,961 328.786
15,000,000 25,000,000
97 117277 111154329
1,193 346 817 282

343,195 270.337

92270 53,776

133.972 178.082

92 474 78381
1.500.000 §.000.000
16,123.228 3.111.840

19478485 8509708

3118595762
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

Revenues:

Heal property taxes

Other tax items

Non-property taxes

Departmental income

Use of money and property

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Sate of property and
compensation for loss

interfund revenues

State aid
Federatl aid

Miscelianeous
Total Revenuss

Expenditures:

Current:

General government support

Education

Public safely

Health

Transportation
Economic cpportunity and
development
Culture and recreation
Home and comimunity services
Employee benefits
Debt Service - Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Usesy
Operating transfers in
COperating transfars out
Operating transfers out -

Component unit
Total Other Firancing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Cwer Expenditures and Other Uses

Furnd Batance - Beginning of Year
Residual Fquity Transfer

Fund Balance - End of Year

1998

Variance

Original Revised Favorable
 Budget Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
48583867 § 48833867 § 55727856 § 5,893 989
5,700,600 5 450,000 8,357 491 {92 569
76,000,000 76,000,000 75 554 316 {445 684
22 B26 056 23,027 268 21.200215 (4,827 053
1,065 000 1,065,000 1,604,634 5386834
830,000 830,000 778,343 {51857
489,802 496 307 482 188 {14,113}
17,000 17,000 30,323 13,323
2,981, 815 2.966.085 3,481 305 515,240
63,409,209 67801613 60,058,505 (7,843,108
30,444 758 31688722 28 802,020 {2,896, 702)
1,419 000 1,434 924 1,675,048 240 124
254 546 507 260,720,760 255,752 244 (4 968 518)
29,006,209 29.853.068 25,086 819 3,866,249
21725724 21725724 17,761,342 3.964 382
28,637 141 23865 429 28,503,784 1,361,645
21578388 24 382 598 22 848 338 1,534 258
12,827 453 13,838,578 13,520,351 318,227
108,680,952 110,147,218 100,618,304 Q527 915
629 048 918,611 805 101 11,510
2689230 2,780,204 2,584 402 206 802
457 900 487 300 381,261 106,639
1,246 528 1,246 528 1,246 528 -
227,728,583 235 363 859 214 467 231 20,896 628
268 817 924 25,356 801 41 285 013 15 828 112
4,552,529 4676 781 4679 441 2.660
(25682 553 (26, 116 393 (25 3067777 808,616
(10,687 200} (10687 900y (10,687 900) -
_3nBiT g4y | (32127.512)  (31.336.236) 811278
(5.000.000) B770.611 9,868,777 16,739 388
5.4000.000 B770611 G 509,708 2,739 097
- % 15478 485 19 478 485




f 9@5 e

atares
Oniginat Revised Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
3 496581.300 $ 48551300 3 50067341 3 476,041
8,100,000 6,100,000 8,729 483 629 483
73,836,001 73,936,001 71285314 (2,650,687}
28,346 850 28,789 881 28,239,758 (550,123}
8955 000 984 500 1,570,813 576,213
848 780 B4B 760 804,546 {42 214}
487 572 508,897 568,774 58777
9.000 12,921 394,871 381,750
4715728 4,722,128 3,854,316 (867 212}
£5.268,183 BG,777 558 59,713,347 {7.064211)
30,074,754 31,687,808 29411 480 (2476318}
L hA1s000 1,450,011 2,049,396 599,385
261,746 148 265 617 965 254 689,849 (10,928 1186)
36,680,156 35397 228 32 866,153 2,531,075
23,238 555 19 972,650 17,045 488 2.827 162
26379 282 30,585,118 26,408 241 1,180,877
20,657 551 23782433 22,384,878 1,383,555
13,247 211 14,533 582 13,875.688 6857 884
107,415 886 109,234 618 103,438,658 5,795,958
686,200 848 417 B24 572 23,845
2,917 227 2 977 668 2.871 547 106,121
560,000 . 800,000 266,580 333,420
498 667 495 667 456 667 ~
232228435  U3B 433379 223,493 487 14,938 857
29516713 27184586 31196367 4011781
4 0395 000 4 744 013 4,240 217 (3,798}
126,923 813) {27 763 866} {27 314 B45; 449 121
(10,687 900) {10 687 90G} {10.687,900) -
(33516,713)  (34.207,853) _ (33.762,528) 445325
(4,000.000) (7.023.267} {2.566,181) 4 457 106
4,000,000 7,023,267 11,838,748 4 816 482
- 235,120 236,120
B - & - % 9,509,708 % 8 500,708
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SPECIAL REVENUE
FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are established to
account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than
proprietary, expendable trusts or capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for certain defined purposes. The special
revenue funds of the County are as follows:

County Road Fund - The County Road Fund was established
pursuant to New York State Highway Law and is used to account
for the maintenance and repair of County roads and bridges and
snow removal costs.

Road Machinery Fund - The Road Machirerv Fund is used to
account for the purchase, repair and maintenance of highway
machinerv, tools and equipment and for the purchase,
construction and maintenance of buildings for the storage and
repair of highway machinerv and equipment.

Community Development Fund - The Community Deveiopment
Fund is used to account for projects financed by entitlements
from the US. Department of Housing and Urban Development,

Sewer Dhstriet Fund - The Sewer District Fund is used to account
for the operation and maintenance of the Countv's sewer
facilities,




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETY
DECEMBER 31, 1596

ASSETS

Cashe
Demand deposits
Certificates of deposi
Departmental cash

Inwvestments

Recevables:
Accounts
Loans
State and federal aid
Due from other funds

Prepaid Expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liagbilities
Due to other funds
Defarred revenues

Totat Liabilities

Fund Balances (Deficits):
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved {or prepaid expendiiures
Reserved for long-term receivable
Unreserved:
Designated for affordable housing
Designated for subsequent vear's
expendituras
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances {Deficits)

71

County Road Comraunity
Road Machinery Development
L Fund o Fund Fund

& 21079 § 511 & 18,684
180 -

21,179 st 8,684

1.638 - -

- - 720,532

76,620 - 124 866

247,729 382,207 100,134

325887 382 267 945,532
24,602 2,461

$ 371788 & |5179 3 984 216

3 93982 3% 106,116 & -
587,751 36,510

- 759,216

891733 142,626 758,216

23.229 138,149 -
24 602 2461

- 225060

{367,796y 0te4s

(319,965} 242553 225000

§ 371768 § 385178 & 984218




Sewer Totals
District
Fund 14996 16395
3 38218 § 96 490 3 244 463
- - 8,290,000
300 400 400
36,516 96 890 8,534 883
10,345,000 10,345,000 1,800 000
251663 253,301 155 775
- 720,532 758 134
136,918 341 405 497 808
- 730070 1,037.623
391 587 2.045308 2,440,438
23.984 51,087 35 030
$_10.797.092 § 12538255 % 12919331
% 725828 § 825927 % 811,095
308 407 1,542 668 1,387 846
148 035 146,035 305,287
35548 794,764 883,888
- 1.81581% 3409394 3,368,127
647 982 B804 360 527 676
23,094 51.057 35,030
7o 70,111 A7 563
225000 225 000
1,224,036 1,324 038 1,640,619
..5.920150 66854297 8855316
8981273 9.128 851 8551204
$ 10797087 % 12538755 3 12,_'33%,,331.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1986

{With Comparative Totals for 1595)

Revenues’
Real property taxes
Departmental mcome
Lise of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and compsensation
for foss
Interfund revenues
State aid
Federat aid
Miscelianeous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Home and communily services
Employee benefits
Debt Service - interest

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendifures

Other Finaneing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing Souwrces (Uses)

Excess (Dehciency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expendilures
and Other Uses

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Residual Equity Transfer

Fund Balances (Deficis) - End of Year

73

EXPERDITURES AND CHANGES

County Road Community
Road Machinery Development
Fund Furnd Fund

3 - % - 3 -
- 310 31,723
- 13,341
12,708 - -

7,163 -

- 454

166,168 -
628,996 - .
254 568 - 2775427
5210 -
1,075,808 764 2,820,591
6,948,773 1458629 -
- - 2,802 289
8848773 1458628 2,802,289
{5,873 865) {1,457 885} 18,702
5,540,583 1,261,861 -
{42 852} 4.021) (18,702}
5497741 1,257,549 (18,702)
(376,224) (149 925) -
56,258 447 478 225 400
$ (319965) 5 242533 5 245000




Sewer Risk Totais
District Retention
~ Fund Furnd 1986 1985

$ 15786483 3 5 15786463 % 16.035.080

114,207 146.240 68.807
540,877 954 318 716,918

- 12,705 20,120

3.015 10,178 19,206

. 454 4948

- 166,166 182,454

191,878 820874 796,658
8.392 3.038.887 3,936,154
459997 466,207 314,460
17,504,929 21402492 22,094.773

8 408,402 7.257 942

- 2,802,289 3.751,007

" 9,140,822 9140822  8.576218
1,295,320 1295320 1,265,585
416,839 416,833 280,000

. 10.852.981 22083672 21,130,752
6.651,948 (661,180) 964,021
850,567 7,693,121 7,505,149
(7,388,708} (7.454284)  (7.175,557)
________ (6.498 142 238,837 328,592
153,806 (472.343) 1293613

8 827 467 9551204 8508995

- - (251 404}

. .8.981.273 3 9,128,861 §_ 9501204
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COUNTY RCAD FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMEER 31, 1986 AND 1985

ASSETS
Cash;

Demand deposits
Departmental cash

Heceivables:
Accounis
State and federal aid
Due from other funds

Prepaid Expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

biabilities:
Accounts payable
A_ccmed liabilities
Total Liabtlities

Furd Balance (Deficit):
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Unreserved and undesignated

Total Fund Balance (Deficit)

Total Liabiiities and Fund Balance (Deficit)

]
{81

1996 1995
b 21079 % 114 321
100 100
21178 114,421
16838 7. B8Y
76 620 85 064
247729 531.351
24,802 15,624
$ 371,768 $ 754447
% 493082 & 1686 387
597,751 531,806
23229 12 455
24 802 15 624
(367.796) 28,180
{3‘?‘3966} 56;259’_
$ 371,768 § 754,447




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COUNTY ROAD FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 1996 AND 1995

1996 ..........
Varnance
Criginal Revised Favorable
Budget Budget Actual  (Unfavorable)
Hevenues,
Licenses and permiis $ 8000 §% B.O0G $ 12705 &% 4705
Fines and forfeitures 15,000 15,000 7163 {7,837
Interfund revenues 473,260 473,260 166,166 (307.094)
State aid 704,172 704,172 628,895 (75,176}
Federal aid 141,998 148,198 254 568 106,370
Miscellaneous 42,852 42852 6,210 (36.642)
Total Revenues 1,385,282 1.392.482 1,075,808 {316,674}
Expenditures - Current
Transportation 5,681,483 7,083,778 6,948 773 - 134005
Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures {5,296 201) {5651,296) (5,873,865 (182,669
Other Financing Sources (Uses): .
Operating transfers in 5,339,053 5540593 5,540,583 -
Operating transfers out (42.852) (42.852) {(42.852) -
Total Other Financing Sources 5286201 5497741 5497 741 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures - (193.555) {376,224} (182 .669)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year - 193,555 56,2549 {137 296)
Fund Balance {Deficit) - End of Year 3 - % - % (3199657 § {319,985)




1985

Varans
Griginal Revised Favorable

. Budgst  Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

3 13.000 3 13.600 & 20120 % 7,120

10,000 10,066 18,381 8,381

380,000 380,000 182,454 (187,546}

719,600 719,600 682,510 {37.080)

100.000 123.000 215,023 92,023

__________________________________ 43,369 43368 49703 6,334

1,265,969 1.288 969 1,168,181 {120,778}

6,369 375 5,475,046 6298008 177,037

- (5.103.406)  (5,186.077)  (5,129.818) 56,259

5,146 775 5,178,175 5178175 -

| (43369)  (43,360)  (43369) :

5103406 5134808 5134806 -

- (51.271) 4,988 56,259

- 51271 51,271 -

5 - % - % 56,258 § 56,259

77



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ROAD MACHINERY FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1895

_____ 1996 19485
ASSETS
Cash ~ Demand deposits b3 5117 % 180
Due from Other Funds 382 207 508 272
Prepaid Expenditures 2481 1,570
Total Assets $ 385179 & 508.032
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounis payable 5 106,116 & 22 544
Accrued liabilities 38 510 43,610
Total Liabilities _....142626 85554
Fund Balance:
Reserved for encumbirances 138,148 401 612
Reserved for prepaid expenditures 2.451 1.570
Unreserved and undesignated 101,843 39,296
Total Fund Balance 242 553 442 478
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ ..385179 & 508032

78



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ROAD MACHINERY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES AND CHANGES
I FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

1996 _
Variance
Original Revised Favorable
Budget  Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Departmental income & - & - 8 3ie 3 310
Sate of property and compensation for loss - - 454 454
Miscellaneous 4,020 4,020 ) {4.020)
Total Revenues 4,020 4,020 784 {3,256}
Expenditures - Current -
Transportation 1,243 231 1663573 1458629 204,944
Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures (1.239211)  (1.659,553; (1457885 201688
Uther Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating fransfers in 1,243231 1,261,961 1,261,961 -
Operating transfers out (4020} {4 021 (4,021}
Taotal Other Financing Sources 1,239,211 1257940 1,257 8940 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Cther Sources Over Expenditures - {401 613 {188 8258) 201,688
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year - 401613 442 478 40,865




1995

Orngpinal

. Budget

Revised
Hudget

Variance
Favorable
Actual {Unfavorable}

4.070

$

4070

4070

1,397,974

4,070

1,401,874

437 3% 437

4670 -

4,507 437

959,933 442 041

(1.353,904)

(1,397.804)

{955 426) 442,478

1,387,974
{4.070)

1.401.874
(4078

1,401,674 .
(4070 D

1,393,804

1.397.904

1397904

442 475 442 478

442478 'S 442478
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

ASSETS
Cash - Demand deposits
Receivables:
Loans

State and faderal aid
Due from other funds

Total Assets

Ligbilities:
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues

Totat Liabilities

Fund Balance -
Designated for affordable housing

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

81

1996 1995
38684 5 111765
720532 758,134
124,866 360,463
100,134 }
945,532 1,118,597
984216 5 1230362
- 6.000

- 135 463
759,216 863,899
759216 1.005,362
225,000 225,000
984,216 § 1,230,362




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1895

Revenues:
Departmental income
Use of money and property
Federal aid
Total Revenues

Expenditures - Current -
Economic opportunity and development

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Cther Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

82

i§9g8 ............

Yariance

Revised Favorable
ngget Actual (Uﬁfavorabée;}_m
- % 31723 &% 31723

- 13.341 13,341
3,584,601 2.775.827 _(B18674)
3,584 601 2.820.581 (773,610}
3,512 601 2,802 288 716,312
RB2.000 18,702 (63 258)
{2000y (18702 63,298
{82,000} (18,702 863298

- 225?{}00 .................. 225(066
- § 225000 % 225000




1865

Yartance

Revised Favorabie
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
18,140 § 18,140
- 11,736 11,738
15 576 844 3,721,131 (11,855 713)
15 576,844 3751007 {11,825837)
15,801 844 3,751,007 12,050,837
(225,000) - 225000
225,000 225000 -
225,000 225,000 -
- 225000 225000
- 225000 % 225000

B3
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SEWER DISTRICT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

1996 1995
ASSETS
Lash
Demand deposits $ 36,216 % 18,187
Certificates of deposit - 8,280,000
Departmental cash 300 300
36,516 8,308,487
Investments 10,345 000 1,860,000
Receivables
Accounts 251 663 147,788
State and federal aid o 1ssete 82578
391 582 200,187
Prepaid Expenditures 23994 17,836
Total Assets $ 19,787,092 § 10426 450
LIABIITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Llanilities:
Accounts payable ¥ 725828 % 622,169
Accrued habilities 908,407 807 .030
Due to other funds 146,035 169,824
Deferred revenues 35548 -
Total Liabilities 1,815 818 1,595,023
Fund Balance:
Reserved for encumbrances 642, 882 513.60%
Reserved for prepaid expenditures 23,594 17 B36
Reserved for long-term receivable 70,111 67,563
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent vear's
expendiiures 1,324 536 1.640 619
Undesignated - 5,920,150 6.587 840
Total Fund Balance 8881273 8. B27 467
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 10797092 § 10426430

g4



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SEWER DISTRICT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

Revenues:
Feal property taxes -
sawer henefit tax
Departrmental income
Lize of money and property
Fines and forfeitures

Sale of property and compensation

for foss
State ad
Federal aig
Miscellaneous

Total Revenyues

Expenditures:
- Current:
General government support
Home and community services
Empioyee benefits
Debt Service - Interest

Total Cxpenditures

Excess of Revenues
Ower Expenditures

Cther Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Gver
Expenditures ang Other Uses

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

£

Variance
Original Revised Favorable

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
15,690,107 % 15880107 % 157868483 3 96 356
105,000 105,000 194,207 g.207
600,000 800,000 a40 877 340,977

- - 3,015 3.015

. 160,548 191,878 31,330

- £.392 8 362 -

230,880 236 880 458 897 229,017
%862608? » 16,795,027 1?’,584,9253 708,902
425 000 281 840 - 281 840
4,785 853 10,609,307 G 140,822 1 468 485
1,384 000 1,384 000 1,285 320 88 680
416 B39 416 839 416 B39 -
12011692 12691986 10852981 1839008
4 514 395 4 103,041 6651 948 25489{}7’
880 867 280 987 890 567 2,600
_(7.135981)  (7.388,781)  (7.388.708) 72
(6.255014; (6507 814 (6,498 142) 89672
{1,640 619 (2,404 773) 153,806 2.558.579
1.640 819 2404773 8827467 5 422 694

- $_B9B1,273 § 88981273




1995

Variance

Originat Revised Favorable
Budget  Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
15,914 747 15,814,747 § 16035050 120.303
33.000 33,000 50,230 17,230
450,006 450,000 705,180 2556180

- - 825 825

- - 4,948 4,948
- 161,672 114,148 (47,524}

231,353 231353 260 687 29,334
16,628,100 16,790,772 17,171,068 380,256
300,000 265,000 - 265,000
10,103,585 11,028,489 8576218 2452281
1,209,400 1,265,600 1,265,585 15
280,000 280,000 280.000 -
11,892,985 12,838,099 10,121,803 2.717.296
4738315 3951673 7,049,265 3,087,562
700,000 700,000 700,000 -
(7.281,159)  (7.281159) _ (7.128.118) 153041
(6,561,159)  (6581159)  (6,428.118) 153041
(1,845 044) (2823 486} 621,147 3250833
..1.845044 2,629,486 8206320 5576834
- - $ 8827467 3 8827467




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

RISK RETENTION FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

1996

Criginal Revised
Budget Budget Actual

Variance
Favorable

{Unfavorable)

Revenues - Departmental ncome s - 3 - 3%

Expenditures:
Current;
General government support - -

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures - -

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Residual bguity Transfer e -

5

Fund Balance - End of Year % - 3 - %

87



1ess

Varance
Originad Revisad Favorable
~ Budget _ Budget  Actugl  (Unfavorable)

-8 -5 - § .

- - 251,404 251,404

- (251.404) (251404)

- 3 - % - 3 -

B8



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




DEBT SERVICE
FUND

Debt Service Fund - This fund is provided to account for
the accumulation of resources to be used for the
redemption of principal and interest on general long-
term debt.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1898 AND 1095

Cash:
Demand deposits
Certificates of deposit
Cash with fiscal agent

Investmenis
Receivables:
Aceoounts
State and federa!l ad

Jue from componernt unit
Cue from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

tiabilities:

Accruad hiabilities

Bond interest and matured bonds payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Batance;

Reserved for long-term recewable

Reserved for debt service

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

59

o tess 1995
$ 945642 $ 1520308
300000 10438835
78,728 94,772
1324370 12,053915
13,121,804 2,935 313
269,803 286,238
145,897 495,153
1,215,000 1.565.000
726,638 1,055,963
2,357,338 3,402,354

$.16.803,512

§ 18,391,582

$ 9,084 3 9,054
78,728 94,772
87,782 103,826
1,052,971 1,448,552
15,662,759 16,830,204
16,715,730 18,287 756
5_16.803.512 $ 18391582




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

DEBT SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 1996 AND 1995

Hevenues:

Use of money and property

State aid
Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expendiures:

Debt Service:
Serial bonds:

Principai
interest

Total Dxpenditures

Deficiency of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Vanance

Criginal Revised Favorahle
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
- 3 - % 2931041 % 2931041

- - 756,431 756,431
- - 64,388 64,388
- 18,298 386,106 367 807
- 18,788 4 137 976 4119677
11.625.010 11,644 656 11,605,840 38,856
7,328 837 7,348,236 7,273.528 74707
18,954 047 18,992,932 18 879 3689 113563
(18,954,947} (18.974,633) (14,741,383} 4,233,240
12,080 214 19.070,514 18,547,934 (522 580}
(5,368,967 (5,378,567 (5,378,567} -
13,691,847 13,681,947 13 169,367 (522580}
(5,263,000} (5,282 686) (1,572,026) 3,710,660
5,263,000 5,282 686 18,287 756 13,005.070
-3 - $ 16,715,730 § 16,715,730




- Variance

Orngingt Revised Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
3 & - % 2583494 § 2583404
- 1,301,864 1,301,864
- - 239,768 239,766
448 488 448468 3863303 3,414 835
448 468 448 468 7 588 427 7.539,059
11,240,893 11,240 883 11,221,783 19,110
7,687 680 7,687,680 7514672 173018
18,928 583 18,928,583 18,736,455 182128

(18.480,115) (18.480,115) (10.748,028) 7,732,087

18,480,115 18480115 24735278 6,255,163
(4770.000) (4775869) (4,775,869 -

13710116 13704246  19,95940¢ 6,255,163

L=x

(4770.000) (4775869 9211381  13.087.250

4770000 4775869 9,078,375 4,300,506

91
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CAPITAL PROJECTS
FUND

- Capital Projects Fund - This fund is utilized to account for
- financial resources to be used for the acquisiion or
construction of major capital facilities other than those
- financed by proprietary funds.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

Cash:

Demand deposis
Tine deposiis
Cenificates of deposit

fnvestments

State and Federal Ald Receivable
Restricted Assels - Investmenis

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and retained parcentages
Due to other governments

Due to other funds

Deferred revenues

Bond anticipation notes pavable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for parklands
Linrgsarved
Designated for transportation projects
Undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Baiance

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

1996 1995
$ 68818 177,918
652,272 903,819
36,745,000 39,109.393
37466090  40,191128
10,844,393 4,550,000
1,126 912 206,542
7,240,851 1,704,751

$ 56,678,246 $ 46,652,421
$ 2,286,248 1,433,042
180,831 32,279
473,758 471,265

- 378,615
18,791,000 7,600,600
21,731,837 9.975,201
839,852 2,016,240
194,000 194,000

© 3,941,408 :
29.971,149 34466 980
34 946,409 36677220

5 56,678,246 $ 46,652,421




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SOMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1996 AND 1995

o hees 1985

Revenues:
State aid $ B098046 & 1962787
Federal aid 2,444 754 108,335
Miscellaneous 233,228 136222
Total Revenues 8776 028 2,208 344
Expenditures - Capital outlay 17,270,776 7.602.033

Deficiency of Revenues

Over Expenditures (8,484 748) {5.393,689;

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds from sernal bonds 6,365 000 10,121,000
Operating transfers in 720,550 1,123,882
Operating transfers out _(821,613)  (B.617,507)
Total Other Financing Sources 6,763,837 4627 375
Deficiency of Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures (1,730,811 (766,314}
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 36,677,220 38222134
Residual Equity Transfer g - - (778.600)
Fund Balance - End of Year $ 34946409 % 36677220
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ENTERPRISE
FUND

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private
enterprises or where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses
incurred and/or net income is necessary for management
accountability. Enterprise funds are used to account for
those operations that provide services to the public. The
operations of the Summit Park Hospital/Rockland County
Infirmary are recorded as an enterprise fund.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - HOME AND INFIRMARY FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

Current Assets:
Cash and Equivalents

Receivables:
Accounts

Accounts - Patient care
Due from other funds

Allowance for uncollectible amounts

Prepaid Expenses
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Fixed Asseis:
Land
Buildings
improvements other than buildings

Equipment
Construction-in-progress

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total Asseis

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued Habiities
Current maturities of bonds payable
Bond anticipation note payable
Current portion of due to retirement sysiem
Due to other governments

Total Current Liabilities

Bonds Payable, less currant maturities
Due to Retirement System, less current partion

Total Liabiiities
Fund Balance - Urnreserved and undesignaled

Total Liabilities and Fund RBalance

1995

_tgee
$ 5161824 8 5913998
839,470 1,220,513
13.921 246 12110173
. 3024555 2815007
17785971 16,145 693
15,166,325 14,147,387
172,880 183,660
239838 388,940
20,740,867 20,633,985
360,000 360.000
16.221.905 16,221 905
345.975 345.975
24,941 467 24,194 813
L. 4124803 3366340
45.993.950 44 489.033
(24,906,195)  (23.594.143)
. 21,087.755 20,894 890
5 41828622 5 41528875
$ 1472083 $ 2307311
11374 587 10502511
1825 407 1676657
1.235.000 ;
358 574 649,685
3,742,858 5679388
20.008.500 20.815.562
10,274,478 12,361 669
1.153.481 1.360.000
31.436.448 34,537 231
10392174 6,991,644

9 41828622 §




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - HOME AND INFIRMARY FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1995 AND 1895

Operating Revenues:
Departmental Charges:
Net Patient Service Revenues:

Rehabilitation and skilled nursing faciiity

fental health
Services provided by Rockland County

Total Patient Revenues
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Administrative and general expenses
Salaries and wage expenses
Pension and employee benefits
Supplies and other expenses
Depreciation
Provision for bad debts

Total Operating Expenses

Loss From Operations

Non-Operating Expenses -
tnterest on indebtedness

Net Loss Before Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers in

MNet income
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

1988 1885
$ 33070925 % 28,720,088
24 656 6517 23.357 547
2 183 513 4,310,819
59,911,055 57,388 461
1,830,527 2,135.766

B 51.741 ,58@” 59524.223
10 668 827 3,754 300
31,607 268 34 598 884
11,317 468 14 869 197
7,238,781 10,052 505
1.751,08% 1,693 513
2,210,921 954,480
64795165  66.022,87%
(3,053,583 {6,488 652)

. 3erosz2 445676
{3,420.865) (6,944 328)
6,821,195 _ 8.279,252
3,400 530 1,334 474
6,991 644 5,656,720

$ 10392174 3 6.991644

i3
{921



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - HOME AND INFIRMARY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Loss from operations

Adiustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating aclivities:

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for bad debts

Changes in operating assets and labiliies
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - Patient care
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accryed labilities
Due to retirement system
Due to other governments

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Reiated Financing Activities:
Proceeds of notes
Issuance of long-term debt
Retiremeant of long-term debt
nterest on indebtedness
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Due from other funds
Operating transfers in
Ratirement of long-term debt
Interest on indaebtedness

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) n Cash and Eguivalents
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Eguivalents - End of Year

Supplementat schedule of noncash financing activities:

1986

1885

(3.053583) $ (6.498.652)

1,751,089 1,693,513
2.210.921 954.480
381,043 (434 574)
(3.401.354)  (2.019.828)
(7,179) (183.660)
58,671 10,610
(693,419) 831,103
1,741,538 1,161
(326.568) 2,009,595
(1,936.530) (2,215,186}
(3.274.371)  (5,911,338)
1,235.000 :
- 2.425 600
(1473.156)  (1.402,648)
(479 666) (611,590)
(1,910,730)  (2.183,588)
(2,628,562)  (1,772.826)
(1,322,027} 614,653
6,821,195 8,279,252
(181.434) (194 250)
(166.985)  (203.038)
5,150,749 8486617
(752,174} 812.453
5913,998 5101545
§ 5161824 § 5913998

The Enterprise Fund transferrad nat assets of $1,414 289 and net liabilities of $1 414,289

to the General Services Fund.
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INTERNAL SERVICE
FUNDS

Internal service funds account for operations that provide
services to  other departments or agencies of the
government, or o other governments, on a  Ccost
reimbursement basis. The County has established its
Workers” Compensation Benefits, General Liability Claims,
Unemployment Benefits, Health Benefits and General
Services funds as Internal Service funds.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1886

fWith Comparalive Totals for 1995)

ASSETS
Cash:
Demand deposits

Certificates of deposit
Petty cash

investments
Receivablies:
Accounts

State and federai aid
Due from other funds

Frepaid Expenses
inventories
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assels
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued hiabilities
Due to retirerment systems
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues
Current maturities of bonds pavyabile

Total Current Liabilities
Bonds Payable, less current maturities
Totail Liabilities

Equity

Contributed capital
Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Total Equity

Totat Liabilities and Retained Darmings (Dehioil)

Workers' General
Compensation Liability Unemployment
Benefits Claims Benefits
Fund Fund ~  Fund
3 103273 % 166,354 % 46 457
53,000 - -
153 273 160,354 46 457
5 570,000 6,900,000 -
33,021 - 18,828
. 1,104,919 80.981
3021 1,104 919 99,8089
22¢ -
5756514 8,165273 146,266
$ 5756514 % 8165273 § 146 266
& 276903 % - % -
G 568 B46 4180 196 41,673
109,384
349 - T
& 040 4872 4 180 186 41 673
3,609
5953091 4,180,196 41,673
(1,196,577 3 985077 104 593
{rteesrry 3985077 104.583
$ 5758514 % 8,165.273 $ 146_266_

g7



Health
Henefils
;F\und

General
Services
Furd

432,986 %

2.500,000

6.065

200

Totals

L deee

749135 §

2,550,000
200

2932986

5,265

3,299,335

46,6580
39173
3,562,089

177 498
24,783
2,946 224

12,470,000

L1995,

437,542
9,406,600

9,837 542

4,080,000

276,025
£3.8958
7,744 223

183,635
63.005

2114785

3,647 652

3,198,503

43254

5,084 204

43,474

890,431

90,431

6,580,938

~ 3.338.453

2815149

(2.472.138)

(23,987 444

2,915,149
(2/472,136)

443013

6,580,538

3,781,466

443,013

e

18,279,156

24,430,457

16,279,156

213917
6 356513

10,508

&

807 038
2,102,013
276,710

o Asti
' 3.028.870

446,101

1,081,856
19,249.241
276710
109,384

10.508

43 450

234388
17477118

131,843
11,520
334

20,781,159
448.710

6,580,938

3,474,971

$

131,341
175,154

6,580,938

-

... 308,495

3,781,466

..21.230,869

131,341

..3.068,.247
.3.199.588

17.855.201
3,958
17,858,159

..41,580.003)
. (1,580,003)

24430457 §_

16,279,196

o8



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN FUND EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996
(With Cornparative Totals for 1995)

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
E-311surcharge
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Administrative and general expenses
Salartes and wage expernses
Judgments and claims
Emplovee benefits
Furchases and stores
Data processing
E-911
Mail
Communications
Reproduction
Housekeeping
iHealth complex matenals
Security
Uitility piant
Grounds
Automotive
Maintenance
Depreciation

Total Operating Cxpenses
income (Loss) From Operations
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses).

intarest income
interest on indabtedness

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Net income (Loss)

Retained Earnings (Deficit) - Beginning of Year

Residual Eguity Transfer

Retained Earnings (Deficit) - End of Year

Contributed Capitat - Beginning of Year

Add: Transfer in

Contributed Capital - End of Year

Totat Fund Eqguity {Deficit ) - End of Year

Workers' General tnempioy-
Compensation Liability ment
Benefils Claims Benefits
Fund Fund Fund
$ 3593106 % 28158632 $§ 235515
3,893,106 2,815,692 235515
350,047 - "
67,347 - -
- 55,255 -
2420278 - 235522
2,838,567 55,255 235,522
1,154,539 2,760,437 {7)
278774 388,189 1,210
(310 -
278464 589,189 1210
1431003 3148626 1,203
{2,627,580) 835 451 103,380
(1,196.577) 3,985 077 104 583
$_(1.196,577) § 3985077 % 104,593




Health General - Totals
Benefits Services RPN ko e
Fund _ _Fund 1996 1995 .

$ 23990343 $ 19.001653 $ 50,036,309 $ 29686364
- 543,795 543,795 -
184286 54740 230026 92.949

24174629 19600188 50,819,136 29,779,313

- 1,183,729 1,534,671 352414
- - 57,347 66,950
- - 55,255 1,078,010
24 420,432 2,285,505 29,361,737 26,604,554
- 1,024,589 1,024,589 -
- 3,649,446 3,649 446 -
- 363,704 363,704 -
- 710,002 710,002 -
- 1,292,375 1,292,379 -
480,548 480,048 -
1,736,601 1,736,601 -

- 311,542 311,542 -
- 1,582,458 1,682,459 -
. 2033177 2033177 -
- 411,237 411,237 -
- 402,178 402,178 -
- 1,788,072 1,768,072 -
120,557 120,557 -

24420432 19386725 46 836,501 28,102 928

| (245803) 213463 3862629 1,676,385

137067 : 804 240 620,440
. (38,309) (38.619) (333)

137.067  (38.309) 765.621 620.107

{108,736} 175,154 4,648,250 2,296 452

108,736 {1.580,003) (3.881.77%)

+

15284

175154 3068247  (1580.003)

- 13134t 131,341 )

131,341 131,341 -
S s 8306495 5 3199588 8 (1,580.003)

woeelt
o
O



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1886

{40tk Comparative Totals for 1985)

Workers' General
Compensation Liability Unemploymentd
Benefils Claims Benefits
Cash Fiows From Operating Activities:
income {loss) from operations % 1,154,539 % 2,760 437 7
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations
to net cash provided by {used n} operating activities:
Depreciation - .
Changes in operating assets and liabildies:
Accounis receivable {8.858) - (2.8393
State and federal aid receivable - - -
Prepad expenses {413 - -
Accounts payabls 36,822 - -
Accrued liabilities 524 264 (2,335,845 (43,181}
Due to retirement systems - - -
Deferred revenues e
Met Cash Provided by (Used In)
Operating Activities 1,706,726 420,492 (46 027}
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest incomea 278,774 389,189 12146
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,080,600 3,606 000 -
Purchase of investmeants {5.570,000; {g.8OOLGOy
Net Cash Provided by (Used in}
investing Activities (4,213 226y (3510811 1.210
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities -
Acquisition of capital assets o - -
Cash Flows From Mon-Capital Financing Activities:
Residgual equity transfer - -
Due from other funds - (417 521y 5839
Due to other funds {22,459 - .
Retirement of long-term deby {334)
Interest on indebledness (3103 -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Non-Capital
Financing Activities (23103} _ (417.521) 5839
Net Increase {(Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents (2.529603% {3,507 840) {38 878}
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year 2882876 3668194 85435
Cash and Equivalents - End of Year $ 153273 $ 160354 3 457

Supplemental schedule of noncash financing activities:

Met transfer of assets and Habilities from the General Fund and Enterprise Fund




Heaith General Totals

$ 131,341

Benefits Services
Fund Fund 1986 1985
% {245 803 $ 213463 3% 3BB2628 % 1.6876.385
- 120,557 120,557
98 803 {177,496} (B2 360% {138 280
23,832 (24 783 {951) (63.005)
- {25,295} {25.3386) (179}
213,610 156,815 407 247 734,388
1,528,874 835,307 505419 11,197 603
- 276710 278,710 -
(1.012) - {1,012 11,520
1616404 1,375,278 5472873 12,917 432
137,087 - 804 240 820,440
- - 4 080,000 264 684
- {12,470,000} (3,000.000)
137067 - (7.585780) (2,114 ,876)
(201.801 (201 BO1Y
- - - 15,284
(2221522} {1,087 BT {3.720.871) (2,114,795}
- - (22 459 127 317
(41,236} (41570 (319)
{38,309 (38619 (333
(2221522)  (1.167.212) _ (3823519)  (1.972.846)
(468,051} 6,265 (6 53B 207 B 828710
2401037 - 9837542 1007832
328328986 % 6265 § 3299335 § 9837542



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1905

Cash:

Demand deposits
Certificates of deposit

investments
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Agcounts payabie

Accrued liabilities

Due to other funds

Current maturities of bonds payable
Total Current Lighilities

Honds Payable, less current maturities

Total Liabilitles

Defict

Total Liabilities and Defict

LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT

feg6 1995

103,273 132,876
..50,000 2550000
153,273 2 682,875
5,570,000 1,080,000
33,021 24163
220 179
5,756,514 3,787,218
270.903 234,081
6,568,846 6,044,582
109,384 131,843
349 334

6,943 482 5.410,840
3,609 3958
6,953,091 6.414.798
(1,196,577) (2,627 580

$ 5756514 $ 3787218

oy

o)



SOUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

YORKERS COMPENSATION BENEFITS FUND

SOMPARATIVE STATEMERNT OF REVERUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

‘EARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

1956

1885

Jperating Revenues - Charges for services

$ 3993108 & 4.130.318

Jperating Expenses’

Adminisfrative and general expenses
Salaries and wage expenses
Employvee benefits

Total Operating Expenses

tncome From Operations
don-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
interest income
nterest on indebledness

Totat Non-Operating Revenues

Net income

Jeficit - Beginning of Year

350 842 357 414

&7 347 56 850
2420278 2682216
2. 838 B&7 3,101 580
1154539 1.028.736
276,774 235756
(310 (333)
276464 235463
1,431.003 1,264 189
(2,627 580) 13891779

Deficit - End of Year

$ (1,196,577) § (2.627 580)

—h
[
£




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
income from operations

Adiustments to reconcile income from operations
to cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assels and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payabie
Accrued hiabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
interest income
Froceeds for investmanis
Sale of investments
Met Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Due to other funds
Retiremant of long-term debt
interest on indebtedness
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-Capital Financing Activities
MNet thoraase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents

Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents - End of Year

05

.. 1996 1995
$ 1154539 § 1028736
(8,858) 20,192

(41) (179)

36,822 234,081
524,264 (234.931)
1,706,726 1,047,899
276,774 235,796
1,080,000 1.344 684
(5570,000)  (1,080.000)
_(4213228)  500.480
(22,459) 127,317
(334) (319)
____________________ (310) (333)
(23,103) 126,665
(2.528.603) 1675044
2682876 1007832

¥ eedB3273 8 2682876




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS FUKD
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Cash:

Demand deposits
Certificates of deposit

Investmenis
Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Liabilities -
Accrued liabilites

Retained Earnings

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings

)
&

1996 1995
160,354 58,194

: 3,600,000

160,354 3,668,194
6,900,000 3,000,000
1,104,919 .. 687398
8165273 $ _ 7,355592
4180196 $ 6,520,141
 3.985.077 835 451
8165273 $  7.355.592




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

1996 1895
Operating Revenues - Charges for services § 2815882 3 1,100,000
Operating Expenses -
Judgmenis and claims 55,255 1078010
income from Operations 2,780,437 20,950
Mon-Operating Revenues -
interest income 389,189 329.133
Net Income 3,148,626 356,123
Retained Earnings - Beginning of Year 835,451 -
Residual Equity Transfer -~ _....485328
| Retained Earnings - End of Year $..3985077 3 835451
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Zash Flows From Operating Activities:
tncome from operations

Adiustments to reconcile income from operations to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabiities -
Accrued liabilities

Net Cash Frovided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
interest income
Froceeds from sale of invesiments
Purchase of investmenis

Net Cash Used i Investing Activities
Zash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:

Residuat equity transfer
Due from other funds

Net Cash Used in Non-Capital Financing Activities

MNet Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Equivalanis

Zash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents - End of Year

oy

-

_tges 1995
2760437 % 20,990
(2,339,945) 6,520,141

420,492 6.541.131
389,189 326,133
3,000,000 .

~ (6,500,000) (3.000.000)

(3,5610.811)  (2670,867)
- 485 328
(417.921)  (687,398)

______________ (417,521  (202,070)
(3.507.840) 3 668,154
3,668,194 -

160,354 §  3.668.194




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

ASSETS
Cash - Demand deposits
Receivables

Accounts
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Liahilities -
Accrued habilities

Retained Earnings

Tetal Liabilities and Retained Earnings

o dsee 1995

$ 46457 § B85435
18,828 15,989

_____ 80,981 86,820
99.809 102,809

$ 146266 % 188,244
$ 41673 % 84 854
104,593 103,390

$ 1467266 § 188244




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS'

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

1986 1995
Dperating Revenues - Charges for services & 235515 % 256,824
Operating Expenses -
Empioyee benefita _ 235522 296,833
Loss from Operations (73 (G
Non-Operating Revenues -
Interest income oo tewe 108
Net Income 1,203 1,022
Retaired Earnings - Beginning of Year 103,380 -
Residual Equity Transfer - 102,368
Retained Earnings - End of Year § ..104595 § 103,390




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1995 AND 1995

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Loss from operations

Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations o
net cash provided by operating activities!
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Accrued liabilities
et Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Aclivities

Cash Fiows From Investing Activities -
Interest income

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Achivities:
Residual equity transfer
‘Due from other funds
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities
Net increase {Decrease) in Cash and Equivaienis

Cash and Equivatents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Eqguivalents - End of Year

1996 1995

$ {7y 3 (9}

(2.839) (15,989)

_(43.181) 84,854

(46,027) 68,856

1,210 1,031

- 102,368

5.839 (86.820)

5838 15548

(38.978) 85435
85.435

3. 46457 % 85435




SOUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

EALTH BENEFITS FUND
SOMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

JECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

ASSETS

ash:
Demand deposits
Certificales of deposit

ecewvables:

Accounts

State and federal aid
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

[iabilities’

Accounis payable

Acorued habilities

Deferred revenues
Total Liabiities

tetained Earmings

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings

11

1995 1995
$ 432986 % 151,037
2,500,000 3,250,000
2,932,986 3401037

46 680 143 483
39.173 63,005
3,562,099 1,340 577
3647.952 1547065

$ 6580938 § 4948102
$ 213917 § 307
6,356,513 4.827 539
10,508 11,520
6.580,938 4.839 366

. 108.736

§ 6580938 3 4948102




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

HEALTH BENEFITS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

1996 1985
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 23990343 $ 24158224
Miscellaneous 184286 92,849
Total Operating Revenues 24,174 629 24252173
Operating Expenses -
Employee benefits 24,420,432 23625505
income (Loss) from Operations {245 803 626 668
Non-Cperating Revenues -
Interest income 137 067 54 480
Net Income (Loss) (108,736) 681,148
Hetained Earnings - Beginning of Year 108,738
Residual Equity Transfer (572,412}
Retained tarnings - End of Year % - § 108736
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

HEALTH BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1995

hese o 1889
Cash Flows From Cperating Activities:
income (loss) from operations 3 (245803 &% 626,663
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 96 803 (143,483}
State and federal aud receivable 23.832 (683.005}
Accounis payable 213,610 307
Accrued liabilities 1,528,874 4,827 539
Deferred revenues B (1,012} 11,520
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1.616 404 5,259,546
Cash Flows From investing Acltivilies -
Interest income o 1sresr 54,480
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Residual equity transfer . (572,412}
Due from other funds (2.221.522) _ (1,340577)
Net Cash Used in Non-Capital Finanoing Activities _ (2,221,522) (1.912.989;
KNet Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Eguivalents . (468 0561 3,401 037
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year 3,401,037 -
Cash and Equivalents - End of Year $ 2932986 5 3401037




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL SERVICES FUND
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1996

ASSETS
Cash:
Demand deposits 3 5,065
Petty cash 200
. 6265
Receivables:
Accounts 177 496
State and federal aid 24 783
Due from other funds _ 2,888 224
3198 503
Prepaid Expenses . 43254
irventories 90431
Total Current Assets 3,338,453
Fixed Assets:
Buiidings 2.880
Equipment o 2912169
2,915 149
Less: Accumulated depreciation {2,472.1386)
443013
Total Assets & 3781466

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilifies:
Accounts payable 3 607,036
Accrued habilities 2,102,013
Due to retirement systems 276,710
Current maturities of bonds payable 43,111
Total Current Liabilities 3028870
Bonds Payable less current maturities 446 101
Total Liabilities 3474 971
Equity:
Contributed capital 151.241
Retained earnings e 173,154
Total Equity ... 506485
Total Liabilities and Equity $ ..3.781.466

tR



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL SERVICES FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN FUND EQUITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 1996

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
£-911 surcharge
Migcellansous

Totat Operating Revenues

Operating Expenseas;
Administration
Furchases and stores
DCata processing
E-911
Matl
Communications
Reproduction
Housekeeping

“Health complex materials
Security
Utiity plant
Grounds
Automotive
Maintenance
Pension and employee benefits

Total Operating Expenses
income from Operations

Non-Operating Expenses -
interest on ndebtedness

Net Income
Retained Earnings - Beginning of Year

Retained karmings - End of Year
Contributed Capital - Beginnung of Year
Add. Transfer In

Contributed Capital - End of Year

Total Fund Egquity - End of Year

116

3

18,001,653
543,795
_..34.740

19,600,188

1,304 286
1,024 589
3,649 446
363,704
710,002
1,282,379
480,548
1,736,601
311,542
1.582 455
2033177
411 237
407 178
1798072
2.285.505

19,386 725

6

213,463

(38.309)

175,154

175754
131 341
131,341

308,495



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL SERVICES FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
income from operations

Adiustments to reconcile income from operations fo
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and habiiities:
Accounts receivable
State and federal aid recaivable
Prepaid expenditures
Accounts payabile
Accrued liabilities
Due to retirement systems

MNet Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Fiows From Capital and Related Financing Activities -

Acquisition of capitat assets

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Retirement of indebtedness
Interest on indebtedness
Due from other funds
MNet Cash Used in Non-Capital Financing Aclivities
Net increase in Cash and Equivalenis
Cash and Equivaients - Beginning of Year
Cash and Egquivalents - End of Year

Supplementatl schedute of non-cash financing activities:

Net transier of asseds and Habilities from the General Fund and Enterprise Fund

213,463

120 557

(177 4986)
(24,783)
(25.295)
156,815
835,307

276710

1,375,278

_..201.801)

(41.236)
(38.300)
(1.087 667}

(1.167.212)

6285

e 0285

131,341




FIDUCIARY
FUNDS

Fiduciarv Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for
assets held by the County in a trustee or custodial capacity.
Fiduciary Funds include Expendable Trust and Agency
Funds. Expendable trust funds account for assets held by
the Countv in accordance with terms of a trust agreement.
Agency funds account for assets held by the County on
behalf of others.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1096
{With Comparative Totals for 1995)

ASSETS
Cash:
Demand deposits

Time deposits
Certificates of deposit

Investment of Employees' Deferred
Compensation, at market value

Accounts Recsivable

Total Assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Ligbilities:
Employee payroll deductions
Deposits
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Deferred compensation
payabie to emplovees

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance - Reserved for social
Service programs

Total Liabidities and Fund Balance

Expendabie Totals
Trust Agency
_ Funds Funds 1986 1545
3 - % 1280775 % 1260775 & 1199629
89 806 2,584,797 2674603 3338727
____________________________ - 250,000 250,000 250,000
B85 808 4,095 572 4,185 378 4 788 356
- 51.738,954 51,738,954 45 682,004
- 300 300 -
$ 89,806 § 55834826 § 55924632 § 54471360
3 - % 54 250G % 54250 % 1258
- 3,135,244 3,135 244 3785 454
- 903,137 903,137 829,798
3.241 3,241 70,903
- 51,738,954 51,738,054 48 682 004
- 55 834 826 55,834 826 R4 373,425
89806 - 89,806 97 835
$ . B9BO6 $ 55834826 § 55924632 § 54471360




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 AND 1595

Reverues.
Deparntmental incomea
Use of money and property
Total Revenues

Expenditures - Current -
Economic opportunity and development

Excess {Deficiency’ of Revenues Over Expenditures
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

119

______ 1996 1995
g 6528 % 19,348
2,058 1,811

8,686 21.257
16,815 19.024
(8,129} 2.233
97,935 95702

$ 89806 § 97935




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - AGENCY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1986

Cash:

ASSETS

Demand deposits

Time deposits
Certificates of

investment of Employess’ Deferred
Compensation, at market vaiue

Accounts Rece

deposit

vable

Total Assets

Employee Payroll Deductions

Deposits

LIABILITIES

Due to Other Governments

Due to Other Funds

Deferred Compensation
Payable to Employees

Total Liabilities

Halance Halance
January 1, December 31,
1605 ncreases Decreases 1998
$ 1198620 % 100235883 § 10882437 $ 1280775
3,241,782 5668232 £ 326227 Z2.584 797
250,000 - - 250,000
4 681,421 16,587,815 17.188 664 4 (88 577
49 682 004 2.056 950 - 51,738,954
- 330 30 300
$ 54373425 % 18650085 $ 17,188,694 §$ 55834,826
3 1256 & 511678605 $ 51148611 % 54 250
3,789 484 2,651,758 2.705 478 3135244
826,758 5,185 877 5,122,638 803,137
70,803 154 305 221,867 3,241
48 682 004 Z 056,850 - 5% 738954
$ 54373425 § 14626480 3 13165085 T 55 834 826
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

_Year

1887

1988

1989

1880

1991

1982

1993

1994

1985

1986

Mote: Includes General and Special Revenue funds.

121

General Economic
Government Public Trans- Opportunity and
Support Education Safety Heatlh portation Drevelopment
& 22036332 & 5315827 $ 134968558 § 12782014 § 11751103 $ 58247006
25788762 4,833,756 16,288 819 14 606 085 16,103,672 B4 156 360
28,708 420 5047 B57 19,460,380 15,869,193 16,023,160 70.802.023
30685755 11,541,197 21,882 110 16,449 262 18,837,986 78925789
30,404 654 8.691,048 22,804 413 17,348,088 17474 874 B8 127.072
27,796,672 12 452 826 23,122,479 17,586,762 17,999,395 B7 B77.438
32,897 465 14,220,285 24,744 BBA 18.700.722 19.610,997 93,538,114
33,124 434 15,348 657 26,727,082 20,355,800 20573652 102,978 654
32,868 1583 17.045 488 29,408 241 22,399 878 21,133,640 107 189 665
26 086,819 17,761,342 28,503 784 22,848,335 21,828,753 103,421 593



Cufture and

Recreation

Home and
Community
Services

%

235313 § 7612426 §

374,501
420,335
808,428
801,798
528,622
413,322
547,141
824572

805101

3,894 852
11480615
10,926 882
12.815.803
12,747 796
11.635615
10,873,328
11.447 765

11725224

Employee

_Benefils

Deabt

Service

22403806 & 15904419

28,652,828
30,573,662
32 987 844
30,214,052
32,739.812
35830543
38,056,371

1,532,165

1,686,581

550,000
1,075,000
1.312.812
2.408.358
1,949,697
1.697.841

776,867

1,683,367

122

Other
Financing

Total

16,111,565 § 188.888.367

356,025 668
47 873.310
56,438,088
41,206,371
41,208 570
43.148,284
44,033 486
45 178,302

43,449,961

215625374
248 868 695
280,458 431
272.089,.886
276 475728
296,789,835
313,717 .568
289 802 536

279880 864



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES AND OTHER SCURCES BY SCURCE
LAST TEM FISCAL YEARD

Lise of
Real Cther Mo Money Licenses
Property Tax Property Cepartmentat and and

Year Taxes ltems Taxes ncome  Properny Permits
1987 $ 48677103 § 3138104 5 40213622 § 33826581 § 4271208 3 381858
1988 12.581.309 2,398 281 42663523 38,403,428 4535813 427 581
1685 51.884 875 3,148,728 43223823 48 (078,294 4,467,738 541,969
1850 £3.821 8683 3591713 43,505 833 41,258 217 3,382.308 £38 8905
1991 £2 844 448 4 692 996 56,245,486 31,397 243 3055 891 G4 347
1992 56,276,148 5681682 86,418 785 32,445,835 2285834 853663
1993 54,946 568 6,085,083 86,759 584 30,843 511 1667228 B38,573
1894 66,221,367 5867,112 70,632,560 34,290,569 1,685,380 747,928
1985 66,102,391 5,729 483 71,285,314 28.308.565 2287729 824 566
1996 71514318 6357 491 75,554 3165 21,346 455 2558 952 791,048

Note Includes General and Special Revenue funds.



¥

Saie of
Property and

Fines and Compensation interfund State

JFoffemures - for Loss Revenues Ald
496 807§ 134 563 96170068 $ 33436414
433,008 154,816 10,793,991 38,555,258
453,035 277792 11,756,505 41,565,205
408 381 286 579 16,824,793 45175057
408 964 349,423 27,335,915 493,251,183
583,551 284,780 27905623 47,908 758
444 235 292,084 33,386,384 53,875,893
781,243 118,370 32,787 426 56,604 573
587 880 399 619 4,037,370 80,510,008
492 366 30,777 3847 471 80874379

$

Cither

Federal Firanaing

_Ad _ Miscellanecus Sources Totat
18,786,988 § 1821438 § 9561388 $ 204662778
21,179,403 2433547 10,604,687 185,165,145
20,352,922 2.664 307 19,853,922 248 314,110
230121477 2,674,056 28,807 411 264 673093
24 519,253 1,445 482 7,422,003 260 382 534
25,011,012 1,715,853 13,210,554 284,602 995
25883 118 1,354 877 10,406,139 256,764 375
28,868 754 2014 760 G.882.007 311,533,054
33,347 644 2,363 856 11,745,366 288,529 688
31,840 907 2,141,255 12,372,562 289,527 298

X
Iy



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

FROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

1987
1388
1484
1880
1891
1862
1883
1394
1895

1995

(1} tncludes County, Town. Village and School relevy a8 the County 1s the levying body.

Current Percent Delinguent Total
Total Tax of Levy Tax Tax
Tax Levy (1) Collections _ Collected Coliections Coltections

$ 333256770 % 328638793 9891% % 4131165 § 333769858
318,079,188 314,786,918 88 97 3,377,688 318,164 607
385,527 540 381,380,041 §8.93 2824 870 384,214,961
417,244 391 410,065,580 4328 4,886 241 414,951 821
446 763 820 435078813 §7.38 5138 288 440 217 111
478,775,851 464,214,767 96,98 5583038 469,757 805
488,800,182 474 631,672 g7.10 11,655,224 486 286,896
508 805577 496 583 504 97 44 13,062,061 509,635,565
534 011 807 520,133,056 97 40 11,233 342 531,366,388
551 457 258 543,530,258 98 .56 13,145,028 556675287



Fercent
of Totst
Tax
Coliection
To Tax Levy

10015 %

108.03
59 66
9%.44
48.53
98.12
498.49

100.61
9950

100 .85

5

Parcent of
Gutstanding Delinquent
Detinguent Taxes o
Taxes Tax Levy
9.945 345 2.98%
9,855,626 310
11,172,505 2.90
13,005 889 312
19,552 608 4.38
28 530,654 5.96
31,043,850 6.35
31013962 6.08
33 654 37+ 6.30
28 441 343 546

Py
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ASSESSED VALUATION OF TAXABLE REAL PROPERTY, AVERAGE

EQUALIZATION RATE AND FULL VALUATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

_Year
1987
1588
188G
1980
19981
1882
1983
1994
1995

19586

Average

Assessead Equalization
Valuation Rate {1}

$ 7,222,272 303 84 21

8,980,171.326 {4} 103.52

8.851,101,142 81.23
9,120,6803,214 68 04
9,356 831,060 54 97
4,478 360470 50.60
$,436,121,381 51.71
9,435,211.487 53.67
9,882,162,386 53.84
5.503 468,123 53.24

Full

_Velustion

% $ 7.,686,141.820

8,674 817742
10,895.535,525
13,403,482 251
17.023,230.615
18,731,250,513
18,247 586,664
17,581, 112,520
18,353,200.207

17,787 386,306

(1} The equalization rate is the weighted average of the State equalization rate established for
each Town within the County. The Town's equalization rates are established by the New
Yoark State Board of Equalization and Assessment.

(2} The increase in the 1988 assessed valuation is due to a re-evaluation of assessed values in

the Town of Orangetown.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COUNTY PROPERTY TAX RATES BY TOWN
PER $1.000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year Clarkstown  Haverstraw  Orangetown iﬁig Ramapo
1987 $ 3546985 3% 24372 % 4926 § 86423 3% 7.101
1488 i County Tax Suspended for 1988 =
1989 3.586849 23.1186 2.377 8.4225 7.183
1890 3683839 21.640 2.275 8.1562 7.000
1991 4 095601 22880 2.402 8.7665 7.370
1992 4768062 23 840 2.738 10.0498 8.380
1993 4.836896 24 470 2.853 97775 9.180
1994 4.866005 24 580 2.808 95846 G410
1995 4456823 24880  2.908%/2.948" 9.2872 9.510
1896 4 385030 24 450 3.0580 9.0848 9.13%

" Town Wide tax rate
** Town Outside Villages tax rate
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

DECEMBER 31, 1996

Five Year Full Valuation of Taxable Real Property {1991 - 1885)

Five Year Average Full Valuation

Debt Limit - 7% of Five Year Average Full Valuation

indebiedness:
Seriat Bonds:
General Purpose
Sewer Distnict Faciblies

Bond Anticipation Notes -
Sewer District Facilties
Revenue Anticipation Notes

Total indebtedness
[ ess Exciusions:
Sewer District Facilities:

Serizl Bonds
Bond Anticipation Notes

1997 Budget Appropriations for
Non-Exempt Debt
Revenue Anticipation Notes
Total Exclusions

Total Net indebtedness

Net Dabt Contracting Margin

Fercentage of Debt Contracting Power
Exhausted as of December 31, 19396

$  72.643,000
...53,175,500

63,175,500
7,200,000

70,375,500

105,688,000
15,000,000

135,818,500

20,026,000
15,000,000

170,844 500

96,063,500

129

$.89,936,390.819

$ 17.987,278,164

$ 1258108471

74,781.000

$ 1184328471

8.69 %



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

RATIO OF NET GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUATION
AND NET GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Gross Less Net
General Debt Service General
Population Assessed Long-Term Funds Long-Term
Year 5 Valuation (2} Debt (3) Available Debt
1987 2659000 $ 7222272303 % 121627688 § 7.316858 114,310,830
1988 265,800 8,980,171,326 120,933,277 5,080,132 115,843,145
1985 265,600 8.851,101,142 122.975.383 6,225,938 116,745,444
1990 265,475 8,120,603,214 116,286,447 4,246,287 112,040,160
1991 267,922 9,356.831,060 107,722,733 5,564,885 102,157 848
1992 269,925 §.478,360,470 120,606,063 7,502,120 113,103,943
1993 272700 $,436,121,381 119,388 820 8,177 863 111,210,957
1994 274 834 9,435 211,487 129 813,665 8,076,375 120,737 290
1995 276,898 9,882 162,386 128,712,882 18,287,756 110,425 126
1996 278,000 9,503.468,123 123,225,445 18,715,736 106,508,715

(1) The population figures are based on estimates made by the Rockland County Planning Depanment
(1987-1988), the 1990 U 8 Census and estimates by the U8 Census Bureau in cooperation with the
N.Y.5. Depariment of Economic Developrment for 1891-18%6.

(2} There was a substantial increase i 1988 due o a re-valuation of assessed values in the Town
of Orangetown.

{3} Represents bonds and capital notes recorded in the general long-term debt account group.
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Net General

Loeng-Term Net General
Debt Long-Term
to Assessed Debt
Valuation Per Capita

158 % % 429890

1.29 43583
1.32 439 57
1.23 422.04
1.09 381.27
1.19 42124
1.18 412.35
1.28 438.31
111 398,79
1.12 383.13
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

RATHO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL

(1} Reflects debt service expenditures recorded in the Debt Service Fund for bonds and
capital notes recorded in the general long-term debt account group.

{
%

LONG-TERM DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year

1887

1968

1989

1980

1991

1892

1983

1964

1985

1996

2y Includes expenditures and other financing uses for general and special revenue funds.

‘Ef;rmcépa.ﬁ {1}

interest (1)

Annual
Debt
Service

Expend-
tures (1)

7777508
8,064 894
8,156,258
$.000.214
9,239,420
9,476,268
10,546,725
11,221,783

11,605,840

$ 7138267 & 8765791

8,387 520
8.498. 417
7,895,837
7,691,085
6,978,957
7,167,803
6,802,730
7514672

7,273,528

$

Total
General
Governmental
Expend-
ftures (2}

Ratio of
Debt

Service (o
Total General
Governmeanial
Expenditures

15,804,418 & 188898367

17,145 025
16,663,311
16.052.185
16,651 288
16,218 417
16,647 172
17,349 455
18,736,455

18,879 368

132

215625314
246 868,695
280,458 431
272,099,886
276,475,728
296,789 935
313,717,566
285802 536

279,980,864

842

7.95

8.71

572

6.13

587

5.61

553

6.46

6.74
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
DECEMBER 31, 1996

Gross Amount
General Less Applicable
Governmental Long-Term Exclusions to

Unit . bebt (1) 2 County
County of Rockiand $ 123225445 5 18715730 § 106500715
Towns 121,276,000 38273000 81,887 0600
Villages 23,093,060 2127 060 20,866,000
School Districts 90,789 000 £.640,000 84,149,000
Total $ 358377445 § 64755730 % 293621715

(1) Excludes enterprise fund bonds.
{2}y EBExclusions include certam water and sewer bonds and the amount available for

repayment in the Debt Service Fund. For the school distnicts . the State schoot building
ald is exciuded.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fer Capita Unemployment
~ Year Population (1) Income (2) Rate (3}

1987 265,900 21,261 440 %
1988 265 800 22,533 2.80
1989 265,600 23,780 350
1990 265 475 25,156 3.30
1981 267,922 258,371 5.30
1992 269,925 28,227 6.00
19983 272,700 26 870 5.40
1994 274,834 N/A 5.40
1885 276,898 N/A 4 80
19586 278,000 N/A, 4.30

Sources: (1) The population figures are based on estimates made by the Rockland County Planning
Department (1887-1888), the 1980 U.S. Census and estimates by the U.S. Census Bureau
in cooperation with the N.Y §. Department of Economic Development for 1991-1996.

(2y U.5. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economics Analysis, New York State
Department of Labor, Division of Research and Statistics.

(3) New York State Department of Labor, Division of Research and Statistics.
(Note: Figures not seasonally adjusted).

N/A Figures are not available for inclusion in this table.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

CONSTRUCTION PERMIT DATA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

1889

1890

1991

1892

1993

1994

1965

1996

Saurces:

{1y This category has been eliminated as of 1896

Mew Non-Residential (1)

New Residential

No. of Estimated No. of Estimated

Pearmits Sag. Rt Value Permits Sq. Ft Vaiue
280 975,000 § 28275000 815 956,000 § 77276000
642 N/A 25884727 671 NiA 789,118,507
3886 N/A 35 290.084 512 NIA B0,177 250
322 N/A 32716876 526 N/A 59,106 695
260 N/A 12,380,737 497 N/A 50819650
254 N/A 10,188,622 612 N/A 68,987 410
261 N/A 21224513 572 N/A B0 512,664
238 N/A 33,478 440 475 N/A 53,230,810
201 N/A& 10,082,102 483 N/A 50,650,740
BA MNIA N/A 485 N/A 48,817 800

MNY.S. Division of HMousing and Community Renewal
U.5. Census Building Permit Survey

N/&  Figures are not available for inclusion in this tabls.



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

DERPOSITS IN LOCAL BANKS BY ALL CUSTOMERS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

mVeaf B

1987

1988

1889

1990

1981

1982

1983

1804

1985

19968

Sources:

Savings/
Cormmercal Savings
Banks Total Fiscal and Loan
No. of Deposits Ending Ho. of Totat
_______ Mo Branches (13 8130 RO Branches (2} eposis
10 84 $ 2.070.148.000 87 14 31 1.676.805,000
11 87 2,154 480 000 ag 15 3 1836 172.000
11 66 2,257 224 000 8g 15 32 1.880,559,000
10 87 2.412 458 000 G t4 1z 1,884,132 000
11 7 2,797 782 000 g1 g 27 1,112, 778,000
0 71 2,732 282,000 gz g 27 1,438 011,000
10 73 2811179000 83 & 22 1,302 500 000
11 78 2.982 574,000 G4 7 18 1,183 .865,0060
11 76 3,013,084 000 95 8 20 1,310.838.000
11 73 3.089,631,000 g6 8 22 1.437.989.000

(1} N.Y.S. Banking Office and FDIC Research Department

(2} Federal Home bLoan Banking - Research Department
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
DECEMBER 31, 1986

Taxpayer

Type of
Business

Orange and Rockland Utilities
and Con Edison Co. ™7

Orange and Rockland Utilities
Armerican Home Products ™
Palisades Interstate Park
Spring Valley Water Co.
Consclidated Edison

NYNEX

Blue Hill Plaza, Inc. ™

Corporate Property investors
Krupp Realty Corp.

Total

hote: Total taxable full values on the 1996 tax roll are $17 . 787 388 306,

Public Utility
Public Utility
industrial
State Lands
Water Supply
Pubtic Utility
Pubtic Utility

Commercial

Hetail Shopping

Commercial

** Taxpayer has filed certiorari claim for one or more fax years.

137

Fult

Valuation

728,023,406
689,817,343
415776435
234 745 466
178,420,344
124,192,914
111,807 466
110,468,174

96,512,564

. £9.129.817

5 2,760,004,832

Percent
of Total
Fult

4.1 %
3.9
2.3
1.3
1.0
07
0.6
0.6

3.5

.4

154 %




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
DECEMEER 31, 1996

Date of Incorporation: 1798
County Executive/County Legisiature

Form of Governrment:

Location and Area:

The County is located in Southeast New York State, on the

wes! bank of the Hudson River. The geographicatl center

of the County is situated about 33 miles north of the Manhatian
business district in New York City. The County has a land area
of 176 square miles, about 30% of which is devoted to parkiand

and recreational purposes.

Employees:
{Authorized Postlions)
General Government
Transporiation
Public Safety
Social Services

. Environment and Housing
Other

Fire Frotection:
Mumber of Stations
Municipat Fire Depantmerts
Number of Volunteer Fire Firefighters

Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Police Officers
{Authorized Positions)

Ambulance:
Number of Emergancy Services

Number of Vehicles

Water Operations:
Mumber of Metered Accounts
Average Daily Consumption
Miles of Water Supply

Supply

I
113
3492
1,835
115

e 22904

45
26
3,000

12

533

15

{2 Fire Company Based)
37

{3 Paramedic)

57 110
29,500,600
805
Several underground stream sources,
springs, ponds and welis, aiso two
reservons.



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICS (Concluded)
DECEMBER 31, 1596

Natural Gas, Electricity and
Telephone Services:

Public Works:
Number of Street Lights
Miles of Paved Streets
Miles of Sanitary Sewers

Public BEducation:
(Independent Schoot District)
Elementary Schools
intermediate Schools
Middle Schools
High Schools
Total Enrollment

Recreation and Culture:
Total Acres
Number of Parks and Recreational Facilities
Number of Libraries
Number of Volumes

FPopulation (Umted States Census):
1940
1650
1860
1970
1880
1990

Hetail Trade:
Number of Shopping Centers
Floor Area

Furnished by private corporations.

16,032
863
1,080

40

4

13

1
£2,416

34,144
13

19
880,828

74.261
88,276
136,803
229,803
259530
265,475

24

3.340.000 sq. f.
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